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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. During the year, the
principal place of business of the Company was located at 11/F,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Subsequent
fo the year end, on 28 May 2012, the Company was relocated fo
20th Floor, One Island South, No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk
Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:
e foundation piling

e electrical and mechanical ("E&M”) engineering and building
construction

*  machinery leasing and frading
° property invesiment and management

*  property development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants {"HKICPA”"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties, financial
assefs at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments, which have been measured at fair value. A non-current asset
classified as held for sale is stated at the lower of ifs carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell as further explained in note 2.4. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") for the year ended 31 March 2012. The financial stafements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All infra-group
balances, fransactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group fransactions and dividends are eliminated on consolidation.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is atfributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assefs
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, [ii] the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |iii) the cumulative franslation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises [i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate.

2011/2012 & #

53



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W % W5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 ZZ2——%#=A=+—H

22 SFBERRKEZE

AEEENERAE SRR B
AT IIAT T RS T B A S
s8] -

BEMT  AAWMHRELEAE R
WELA 2B BEARMEE
F15% HEREER-BX
ZIERT RAB BB

ERE 7 BREH

REZBRHAL
BEGit  BHEALRE
28
£245%
(#&15T)

FE(ER BE(ERVHRERE
HmE ZE®)-REBFE 4
RBZRE8 N EBF RAEEZ
Q) - BB KZEMIE
E145%

ZIERT

BE(BER N Ez TAREDH
BEHmE  RE
nEZRE
g) - 2F
EI19%

—E-FF —T-TERABGY
v S S O
WEEE  RAZE
22

BRI XBMEBETERE 24 5% (K
AARBERGERF I RLERE
ATEAE 27 2B (BER-F—F
FEEUBHEEALER)NTE
{EE— SRS - TR SRR AR B
BESOHE B R NE: S RN b e
ELXBAUBTE -

54 2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment  Amendment to HKFRS 1 Firsttime Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard's —
Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures  for Firstime Adopfers

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HK(IFRICHnt 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)Int 14
Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement
HK(IFRICHnt 19 Extinguishing Financial Liobilities with
Equity Instruments
Improvements fo Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
HKFRSs 2010 in May 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS
24 (Revised), and amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in
Improvements fo HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these financial

stafements.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (Cont'd)

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

(o]

HKAS 24 (Revised| Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 [Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of
related parties. The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical
view of related party relationships and clarify the circumstances
in which persons and key management personnel affect related
party relationships of an entity. The revised standard also
infroduces an exemption from the general related party disclosure
requirements for fransactions with a government and entities
that are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the same government as the reporting entity. The accounting
policy for related parties has been revised to reflect the changes
in the definitions of related parties under the revised standard.
The adoption of the revised standard did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group. Defails of
the related party fransactions, including the related comparative
information, are included in note 40 to the financial statements.

Improvements fo HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate fransitional
provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting policies, none
of these amendments has had a significant financial impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that an analysis of each component
of other comprehensive income can be presented either
in the statement of changes in equity or in the nofes fo
the financial statements. The Group elects to present the
analysis of each component of other comprehensive
income in the stafement of changes in equity.

e HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the consequential
amendments from HKAS 27 [as revised in 2008) made
fo HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and HKAS 31 shall be applied

prospectively for annual periods beginning on or affer 1
July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied earlier.
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2.3 EEMEEREREBIHBER 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
HZER FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

REBHARKHBHREEKAATER
MIERERZFR] RBERT B BA R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

56
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ZIER] RE B BREE Government loans*
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ZIER] i REFE RS
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BEMBRE BEVBREENS HKFRS 7 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
RRIE 7 5% 7% eI AZE Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
ZIERT i E-BHE Financial Liabilities*
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BBMBWE £HIAC HKFRS @ Financial Instruments®
HERIZE 957

BRUBRSE HFEUBHRE! HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
£RIZE10
5%

BRMBRE AELH! HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*

LERFE T
5%

BRMBRE RERAMERLZE HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*
FERIFE 12 at
5%

BREMBRE A FEESE HKFRS 13 Fair Valve Measurement'

LERIFE13
5%
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKAS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of ltems

of Other Comprehensive Income®

HKAS 12 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying

Assels?
HKAS 19 (2011 Employee Benefits*
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures*

HKAS 32 Amendments  Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presenation - Offseffing

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

HK{IFRICHnt 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Surface Mine*

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle?

Annual Improvements
Project
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

‘ Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 July 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2015

The Group s in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position fo state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have
any significant impact on ifs results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company contfrols, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
stafement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company's inferests in subsidiaries are sfated atf cost less any
impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an enfity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group
has a long ferm interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence.

The Group's share of the postacquisition results and reserves of associates
is included in the consolidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated fo the extent of the
Group's investments in the associafes, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The Group's
investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group's share of netf assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
fesfing for an asset is required (other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, consfruction confract assefs,
deferred tax, financial assets and non-current assets classified as held for
sale), the asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the
asset's value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is defermined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit fo which the assef belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
fo the income sfatement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired assef.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is esfimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of an asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined [net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the assef
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
income stafement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related 1o the Group if:

(a)  the parly is a person or a close member of that person’s family

and that person

(il
(i
i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(il

i

il

(iv)

v

[vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the enfity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i] has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are sfated af cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets classified as held for sale”.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the assefs
fo its working condifion and location for ifs intended use. Expenditure
incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put
into operation, such as repairs and mainfenance, is normally charged
fo the income sfatement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capifalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

leasehold land under finance lease  Over the lease terms

Building 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33'/3%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

10% - 33"/3%

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of properly, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis

among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least at each financial year end.

2011/2012 & #
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Contd)

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the income statement in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are inferests in land and buildings [including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definiion of an investment property) held fo
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially af cost, including fransaction costs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are stafed at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properiies are included in the income sfatement in the year in which they

arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
refirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Non-current assets classified as held for sale

Non-current assefs are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sales fransaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to ferms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assefs and its sale must
be highly probable.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and financial assefs)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment
classified as held for sale are not depreciated.

Properties under development

Properties under development are sfated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs
and other cosfs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period.

Properties under development which have either been presold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be complefed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct costs atiributable 1o the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is defermined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal tifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases, are
included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assefs. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income stafement so as to provide a consfant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operafing leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assefs leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited fo the income
statfement on the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, renfals payable under operating leases are charged
fo the income statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assefs at fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
assefs at initial recognition. When financial assefs are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction costs, except in
the case of financial assets recorded af fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and bank balances, resfricted
cash, time deposifs, trade and other receivables, investments at fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets /Conta))
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assefs are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition af fair value through

profit or loss are designated af the date of inifial recognition and only if
the criteria under HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (held for frading) fo assess whether the infent fo sell them in the
near term s sfill appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group
is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management's intent to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly
changes, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial assets. The
reclassification from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
to loans and receivables, availobleforsale financial assets or held-o-
maturity investments depends on the nature of the assefs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investments and other financial assets /Conta))
Financial assets at fair valve through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and
the host confracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured af fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be

required.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
deferminable payments that are not quoted in an acfive market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance income in the income statement. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income stafement in
other expenses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is any obijective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assefs is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event’) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in inferest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enfer bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicafing that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd))
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assefs that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group defermines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial assef, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's origmo\ effective interest rate [i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable inferest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective inferest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement. Inferest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Lloans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to
the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited fo the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assefs) is derecognised when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has fransferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has refained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither fransferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognised fo the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has
refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured af the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required fo repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging insfruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group defermines the classification
of its financial liabilities at inifial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the
case of loans and borrowings, directly aftributable transaction cosfs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivative financial instruments and a
loan from an associate.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair valve through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon inifial
recognifion as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments enfered info by the Group that are not
designated as hedging insfruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria of HKAS 39 are satisfied.

2011/2012 & #

69



:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

70

W5

24 TERESHBERBEE)

EHEEE)
EHRER

PRHERE - FFRERREEER
NEBRM R IZ R ER A \ﬁﬁ
RURLAEKX - BIGRAATIR -
BERIIRERRCEBERN R HH
B W RERERNER R TR -

=
=
1
i
=)

BB AR 2 TR RSB ER
afE - ARBRERRA AR 2 B
PSR - ERAIREHE T ARER
Z BB o

HBEREX
N S I{’Fdjzﬁﬂwﬁ%/f\ KRN E %
AEREEAR ﬁhﬁ/\lﬁ@

BAKRE de?J%ﬁ?r%IﬂZﬂ%?ﬂE E5H
FRMABBKZAH - BHERED
MERENFEERS-BHAE L
RIELZEREREL 2 X HMAIES
RE - NIPHERE - ARER()®E
MRZBAEEMARS 2 &ERTE
B RSER 2 BER(NER) R
AEBEOARSERE)FEMBERA
O

Tﬁfgm\f’ﬁﬂﬁ /_:E

EaBETZAEERRIIVERER
- 25lhRReRas -

WRBERAERRER—ERARRK
FBTERZ - RAEMBRA -
REAEZGIETARES - LdE
BUET BRI GHERREAER

BRFEE MAEBREBEEEST
BRRER -

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

= NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 ZZ2——%#=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Financial liabilities /[Conta)
loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interestbearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated af cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income stafement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisifion and fees or cosfs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective inferest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee confracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those confracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair valve, adjusted
for transaction costs that are directly atfributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo inifial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract af the higher of: (i} the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to seffle the present obligation af
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income sfatement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are offset and the net amount is
reported in the stafement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an infention to setile on a net basis, or fo redlise the assets and
seffle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair valve of financial instruments

The fair value of financial insfruments that are fraded in active markets
is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quofations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions|,
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriafe valuation fechniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the current market value
of another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps, o hedge its foreign currency
risk and interest rafe risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are inifially recognised af fair value on the date on which
a derivative confract is entered info and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly fo the income statement, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments [Conta))

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging

instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated info a

current or non-current porfion based on an assessment of the facts and

circumsfances |i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic hedge
(and does not apply hedge accounting] for a period beyond
12 months after the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated info current and non-current
portions) consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

the host
confract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host

Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to

confract.

Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated into current portions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,

and net realisable value affer making due allowance for any obsolete

or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on eslimated

selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and

disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed confract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subconfracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference tfo the
proportion of costs incurred fo date to the estimated tofal cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction confracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
the proportion of costs incurred fo date fo the estimated fofal cost of the
relevant confract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract customer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo a contract customer.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as 1o use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or consfructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to seffle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected 1o be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance costs in the income sfatement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax relating fo
items recognised outside income statement is recognised, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured af the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the
taxation authorities, based on tax rafes (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
faking info consideration inferpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operafes.

Deferred fax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences af the end of the reporting period befween the tax bases of
assefs and liabiliies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the fiming of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax [Contd

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
fax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be ufilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a fransaction that is not a business combination and, at the
fime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

*  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred fax assets are
only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the tfemporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset fo be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed atf the end of each reporting period and are
recognised fo the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
faxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabiliies are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply fo the period when the assef is realised or the liability
is seffled, based on fax rates (and fax laws| that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists fo sef off current fax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same faxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

[a)

(bl

(c]

(d)

e)

(gl

From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building
construction confracts

n the percenfage of complefion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction confracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been

fransferred o the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease terms;

From the rendering of property management services
n the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial assef; and

Dividend income

When the shareholder’s right to receive payment has been
esfablished.



24 FESTHBERBE(E)

ESHEF
RO ZT2X5

RRRRL—EBRETE - (ERAR
AEERNEEEHAERZAERSH
ERTRBREE ~EEZER(R
RER)ARM N 22577 AWER
B - e SRR AR 1 AR TR
ZRE(TUABESNZRS]) -

RZFZ-F+—AtH%  BESE
TTUBRES N 2 R B 2R - TH2RE
HAMZ A FHERE - AV EAIMNER
BRER—EAERE -

B N 2 X5 2 A E Rz
FEIEIER D - EEMR, TR G
ER R - EREA YA - N E
BREPRER 2 AR N 2R H 2
25X NRREBHC BB &
AEBHREKERB 2 ETAKR
ZRER - EX—HEAERERA
R SERR - TR ARSI I
MR R 2 28 -

HRERLERREBBEE T8
HEREMFX - ERFHSEETRE
FRETZCUBREXNZRZRIK
o BRZBBEENS - REMAH
ARG CEER - TwmiziEt=
REK - BRGARERE

fid 5 A PSR S 111 22 P P 2 16k P 2
¥ - R X &R D BEIIBEINGER
WEREAEE LA EREERENR
B2 o tEoh - RRET R
A8 EAEEEHARN 2 7
ZENTEAMEM  REEFRE
e - B Z S E B -

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits
Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who confribute
fo the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments {"equity-setiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-setiled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equitysetiled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equitysefiled fransactions at the end of each
reporting period unfil the vesting date reflects the extent fo which the
vesfing period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit fo the
income sfatement for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-setfled transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or nonwesting condifion, which are freafed as vesfing irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the ferms of an equity-sefled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the fotal fair value of
the share-based payment fransaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Cont )
Share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

Where an equity-setled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the dafe that it is granfed, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilufion in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment confracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave eamed during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percentage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged fo the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
contributions to the Fund were ferminated on 1 April 1999.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Employee benefits (Conta)
Pension schemes [Cont'd)

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
refirement scheme arrangements fo comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assefs
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required fo
contribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged fo the income sfatement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assefs are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entfity in
the Group defermines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rafes ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. All differences arising on seflement or translation of monetary
items are taken fo the income stafement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rafes atf the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured af fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dafe when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
refranslation of a non-monetary ifem is freated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item |i.e., translation
differences on item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income sfatement is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).

The functfional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
info the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling af the end of the reporting period and their income sfatements are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expeciations of the future and other information. The key
sources of estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of fradle receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of frade receivables
and on management's judgement. Significant judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability fo make payments, additional
provisions may be required.

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of complefion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers af the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the fofal budgefed cost. Corresponding confract revenue
is also esfimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered info and the date when the activity is complefed
usually fall info different accounting periods. The Group reviews and
revises the estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in
the budget prepared for each consfruction contract as the contract
progresses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Current and deferred fax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such defermination is
made.

Mainland China land appreciation foxes (“IAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing cosfs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China. The Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and payments
for most of its property development projects with various tax authorities.
Accordingly, significant judgement is required in defermining the amount
of land appreciation and ifs related faxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates. Where the final
fax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which such defermination is made.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in
a manner consistent with infernal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

[a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b)  the E&M engineering and building construction segment;
[c)  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d)  the property invesiment and management segment; and
[e]  the property development segment.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax.

The adjusted profit/(loss| before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/(losses)
from the Group's financial instruments, share of results of associates as
well as head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assefs, invesiments af fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, tax prepaid, time
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as
these assefs are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, inferest-
bearing bank borrowings, fax payable, deferred tax liabiliies and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference fo the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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Al Seqment evene:
BETMERE  Solestoexermal customers
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HXEE o
b) ¥ERBEE:

LR RBEENEEMENE
REZATBREEHREE °

BE—ETBEFZEH

Y %5 49255,105,000% T(Z T — —
% 422,032,000 7T) REMEITIE
DERE-EPIELZHE -
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= NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
Geographical information
(a)  Revenue from external customers
{3 B HEEfHE &a
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere inhe PRC Consoldted
e e e o e e
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Tér Tt fiér T 1 Tz 1 Tz
HS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00
2252055 188342/ - 11,093 96,287 760,48 2348342 2609768
The revenue information above is based on location of the
cusfomers.
(o) Non-current assets
E# i HEEHE &8
Hong Kong Macay Esewhere in he PRC Consolideted
e T o T s e Su i S e Lt .
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
TEr TAr TEr 7L A TEr A TEr
K000 HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSO00
505967 367,048 9 [ 1293634 1045267 1799694 141233

The non-current assets information above is based on location of
the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$255,105,000 (2011
HK$422,032,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
segment fo a single customer.



Wz« b AR EF

Weas (TREN AR 2 & 55 15 b SR 5D
HIHAIEMBREHEITBEERER
BETRANER  EEMSRDEE
BERFRA: HEY R RESEAEHE
WA HERBAHRHEE MR ZBA
BHEEALRE-—EAR SR 2
B

ALz W - BB ARBF 25T

nr

Ay
WEITH
BERRETR
BEREREE
MERARER
NELR

HiWAREH :

FIBHA

RERRIE
HERMENE - s kR EHEE
Z &R

HEREMEZ BN
HEMBARER 2B - 8
FRRRHA *
BAHER ARG CRELZ
AFEEF - FE
ERER - FE

BERBWA
EHRE 2 BBIRA

Hith

Y BRZERMALEARER IR
REM -

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's tumover, represents the aggregate
of the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering and building
construction contracts cerfified by architects or quantity surveyors;
income derived from machinery trading and property management;
renfal income from property and machinery leasing; and income from
the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant

infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

*

follows:
B2 —T—%
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue:
Foundation piling 2,219,025 1,852,870
E&M engineering and building construction 9,620 28,688
Machinery leasing and frading 22,834 12,386
Property investment and management 31,896 74,724
Property development 64,967 691,100
2,348,342 2,659,768
Other income and gains:

Inferest income 20,159 12,946
Insurance claims — 1,042

Gain on disposal and write-off of ifems of
property, plant and equipment 466 2,474
Cain on disposal of investment properties 27 524
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, nef — 155,924
Subsidy income* 2,688 404

Fair value gains on investments at fair

value through profit or loss, net — 71
Foreign exchange gains, nef 2,052 2,943
Management service income 1,562 8,094
Dividend income from listed investments 142 113
Others 4,399 3,732
31,495 188,267

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
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6. BERA 6. FINANCE COSTS
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Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts:

- wholly repayable within five years
~ wholly repayable over five years

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

£E

GROUP
—E--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
FET F#Er
HK$000 HK$'000
7,048 9,787
1,765 577
8,813 10,364

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at affer charging//(crediting):

Depreciation
Minimum lease payments
under operating leases of
land and buildings
Rental of consfruction equipment
Auditors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration - nofe 8);
Wages and salaries
Equitysefiled share option expense
Pension scheme confributions

g3
Notes

14

—E--F —Z2——F

2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000
64,829 52,751
10,980 12,230
19,053 24,899
2,582 2,477
277,141 238,404
424 1217
7,434 6,795
284,999 246,416
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at

(Cont'd)

Foreign exchange gains, net*
Impairment of frade receivables*
Recovery of trade receivables
written off in prior years*
Write-down of inventories
fo nef realisable value*
Gain on disposal and write-off of ifems
of property, plant and equipment*
Gain on disposal of
investment properties*
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net*
Fair value losses/|gains), nef:
Investments af fair value through
profit or loss*
Derivative instruments - fransaction
not qualifying as hedge*
Changes in fair value of
investment properties
Wirite-back of impairment
of other assefs*
Impairment of an amount due
from an associafe *
Rental income from operating
leases of machinery
Rental income on investment
properties less direct operating
expense of HK$8,252,000
(2011: HK$14,999,000)
Dividend income from
listed investments *

*

i
Nofes

24

31 March 201

ZE-Z#=A=1-R

after changing/(crediting):

g —T——F
2012 2011
FET FEr
HK$'000 HK$'000
(2,052) (2,943)
2,876 —
(102) —~

29 Q5

(466) (2,474)
(27) (524)

— (155,924)

901 (/1)
9,700 8,527
(28,800) (17,899
(30) (70)

33 20
(10,911 (5,638)
(13,639 (50,976]
(142) (113)

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net" or "Other income

and gains” in the consolidated income statement.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules
Goveming the Listing of Securities [the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”] and Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

£E
GROUP
—E--F —T——F
2012 2011
FE F#ET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Executive directors — -
Independent non-executive directors 432 432

Other emoluments of executive directors:

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind 42,744 38,153
Equitysefiled share option expense 424 838
Pension scheme confributions 96 84

43,696 39,507

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2008, certain
directors were granfed share options, in respect of their services fo
the Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
defails of which are sef out in note 35 to the financial statements and
the report of the directors. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the income sfatement over the vesting period,
was determined as af the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.
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Executive directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung

Mr. Fung Chiu Chok, Victor
Mr. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Mr. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung

Independent non-execufive
directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul
Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, Ceorge

Total

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

The remuneration paid or payable o each of the directors is as follows:

B 20

RENFE IREXfTZ EfRE

Solaries, ~ HREIH BE

allowances  Equitysetiled Pension
#&  andbenefits  share option scheme @t
Fees in kind expense  contributions Tofal
FEx TET TEx FEn FEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
— 13,228 — 12 13,240
- 10,348 - 12 10,360
— 964 — 12 976
- 5,028 — 12 5,040
— 4,932 — 12 4,944
— 2,578 - 12 2,590
- 3,216 424 12 3,652
— 2,450 — 12 2,462
- 42,744 424 96 43,264
144 - — — 144
144 - — — 144
144 - - - 144
432 — — — 432
432 42,744 424 96 43,696
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8. HEEM=e(#E) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

i) =
REDAR  RERNZ fiRg
Sclories,  EERRERH HE

allowances  Equitysetiled Pension
#2  ondbenelils  share option scheme =t
Fees in kind expense  confribufions Total

TiET TiET TiET TET TiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—2——F 2017

WTESE: Executive directors:

REELE Mr. Francis Cheung - 12473 165 12 12,650

HEETE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor - 9148 165 12 9,325

BokEEE Mr. David Chien - 918 4] 12 971

FEE/NE Miss Jennifer Kwok - 5,088 46 12 5,146

BEBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 4,292 33 12 4,337

BRLE Mr. Wong Kay - 2,088 67 12 3,067

el Mr. lau Kin Fai - 1,863 321 6 2,190

REERE Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung - 1,383 - 6 1,389

- 38,153 838 84 39,075
BUFHiTES: Independent non-executive
directors:

BEELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 144 - - - 144

BWALE Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 - - - 144

ETREE Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 144 - - - 144
432 - - - 432

a5t Tofal 432 38,153 838 84 39,507

AFEN  BEEEHREXREHRELT There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed fo

e 2 24k - waive any remuneration during the year.

9. HiuERSHEHZEE 9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

RAEERBEEE  ANRSEHZE The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years

B AKRNRES - AP FBER L are all directors of the Company, defails of whose remuneration are set

SftpIEE 8 o out in note 8 above.
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10. INCOME TAX

ERMNEMBREANEBEE 2 HE Hong Kong profits tax has been provided af the rate of 16.5% (2011:
ERBBRMNZ2165%(ZF——4: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
16.5%) V5 L B8 o B E 4t 3 [ & =R the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
MaMzHBEDRAEEEE R 28 calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which

TR -

AERDRA 2 AR -

R
B
o/

HEERETR

R
B
BT

B (FFE33)
RERZHARSER

¢ BE-T-—F=-A=1t—HLF
B ERGERAKBELENE AT
(M EE41(0) 2 A AL FE LA E K
Wzt 22,137,000 47T

the Group operafes.

£H
GROUP
—F--F ZF—F
2012 2011
FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:

PRC:
Hong Kong 30,014 11,913
Elsewhere 19,695 261,255

49,709 273,168

Underprovision in the prior years:

PRC:
Hong Kong 6 -
Elsewhere * 22,137 27
22,143 27
Deferred tax (note 33) 8,074 22,392
Tofal tax charge for the year 79,926 295,587

During the year ended 31 March 2012, an assessment was received
in respect of the Group's disposal of subsidiaries (note 41(a)] and
accordingly, capital gains tax of HK$22, 137,000 was paid.
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10. FRiSHL(E)

ERRAAREREWBARRMERK
PR 2 EE R R B BRBANEF 2
AR EAERB R E 2 HARX

ZHERIT

BRI AT A

POERER R R 2B
THIEERERE
TRER HETE

HF AR RS REM L 2 BE

e NSl eyl

BERTIA

A FHRRIE L FX

RAKETEAENEARZ
AR IR
tillwe-Z

PHBEFE  BAER

RIER BRI R

BAREERREFE 2 HAMNX

1. ARREBRRREBEER

ARARIBHRRBECHE_T——
FZA=t—HUEFERRBEBEK
REGEA RN BEER 3,470,00078
TT(ZZ——% : 4,282,000 7T ) (K

1 36/b) °
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10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the sfatufory rafes

Provision for land appreciation fax

Tax effect of land appreciation tax

Adjustments in respect of current fax of prior years

Profits atiributable fo associates

Income not subject fo fax

Expenses not deductible for fax

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China

Tax losses utilised from prior years

Tax losses not recognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rafe

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
sfatufory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge af the effective tax rate, is

3]

GROUP
B —T——%F
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
168,461 711,971
23,225 147,767
14,256 148,085
3,982 (33,770)
22,143 27
(785) (712)
(2,229]  (22,051)
19,743 14,793
(7,675) 45019
(1,489 (8,758
8,755 5,187
79,926 295,587

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit affributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes a loss of
HK$3,470,000 (201 1: HK$4,282,000) which has been dealt with in
the financial stafements of the Company [note 36(b)).



12.

13.

BRE
AERRME :
BE-T——F

ZRA=+-HIFERBKE
—BiREER 4.0
(BE-T-—ZTF=A=+—A
W - 3.0584l)

AR B — FAR AR 1.5
(ZE——%F : 2.0/8)

BRI RIS
REIRR B — B @A 4,081
(ZZ——F 1 4.08)

RERFZRN 2 KRB SLRRF R
RAK AR BRRBFAEG LA - &
RIS IRAR LB R R e RS,

RRABEBRBRREGZRER

BRERRNTHRBAREEBRK
RIE 6 R 2 M97,648,0007 T
(ZF — — % :373,441,000% 7T )
BRAFEREAD T E BB INEF
19 81871,953,882%k(ZF — — 4 :
851,831, 519MK)5TE -

HE-_T——FZA=+—HUEFEZ
SREERANZBADR L BBRE
JEAEF B R F 97,648,000 (=&
——4%F 373,441,000 )5t & © &
BERMAZMEFHEBRRE - AF
REBHTEBBERE  AHESRER
BNEMAZRE  ARBREZEE
MATE B R R P R (E 8517 373,421 IR
(ZE——%F 7,109,377 ) E@Rz
METFIE

ERBMBERAR AT
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31 March 2012 ZE—Z$=A=+—H
12. DIVIDENDS
B2 —T—%
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Dividends paid during the year:
Final in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2011 -
HK4.0 cents
[year ended 31 March 2010: HK3.0 cenfs)
per ordinary share 34,891 25,4772
Inferim - HK1.5 cents {201 1: HK2.0 cents)
per ordinary share 13,090 17,048
47,981 42,520
Proposed final dividend:
Final - HK4.0 cents (201 1: HK4.0 cents)
per ordinary share 34,907 34,805

13.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$97,648,000 (2011: HK$373,441,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 871,953,882 (2011:
851,831,519) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2012 is based on the profit for the year attributable
fo ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$97,648,000 (2011:
HK$373,441,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic eamings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed fo have been
issued af no consideration on the deemed exercise of share options info
ordinary shares during that year of 373,421 (2011: 7,109,377).
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14. 5% - RN RE

ESL]

~3-2p=t-A

WA
)
AE
e /W
BRENBABNEL
FigAE
(K3t 28)
3EL

R-8-—£=A=+-H

ZithE

RBifE -

&

KEERE
Bk

HE /s
BEENBARLEL
FigAE
(Kt 28)

B %

R-E-—£=f=1-H

FHFE:
R-E-—F-A=+-H

R-F—F=A=1-H

31 March 2012

Cost:
At beginning of year
Additions
Disposals /writeof
Transfer fo nowcurrent asset
clossified as held for sale
(nofe 28)

Exchange realignment
At 31 March 2012

Accumuloted depreciation

and impcirment

At beginning of year

Depreciation provided
during the year

Disposols/writeoff

Transfer fo non-current asse
dossfied as held for sole
(note 28)

Bxchange realignment

At 31 March 2012

Net carrying omount:

At 31 March 2012

At 31 March 2011
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

GROUP
RER A
3 £E BE
THEEE  Equipment  Fumire e B N6
lond and and and Motor Motor  Leasehold it
bulding  machinery fitures  vehicles yacht  improvements Tofal
FEr FEn FEr FEr FEn FEr FEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
138,482 794,144 17,805 19712 6,098 42,306 1,018,547
214786 104,921 215 2,019 - 4905 326,446
— 97 A oy — o By
1137,805) - - - - — 197805)
- 545 153 251 - 1313 2,202
215,463 883,293 13,740 21,006 6,098 46,407 1,186,007
14,551 623,960 15,245 14,328 6,098 38542 712724
9,313 49,614 621 2,284 - 2997 64,829
— e B — o )
(17001) - - - - A
- 420 107 166 - 1,278 1971
6853 658,023 12,208 15,802 6,098 40700 739,684
208,610 225,270 1,532 5,204 - 5707 446,323
123931 170,184 2,560 5,384 - 3764 305,823
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14. Y% - HBERZRHEE) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
#@ (%) GROUP (Cont'd)
RER FR
e 5B i
THREF  Lovipment Fumiture ke BE NEEE
land ond and and Motor Moor ~ leasehold 5t
bulding  machinery fixures vehicles yacht  improvemens Tolal

TET TET TET TET TET TEL TEL
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000

“E——EZF=+t-0 31 March 2011

WA Cost:
a2 At beginning of year 138482 728,800 32,341 20,141 6,008 61841 987700
hE Addtions - 73770 1497 1,980 - 3441 80,688
ik Disposols - (8.756) (452 (1,504) - - (10712
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidiries
(RizE41) [note 41] - (146 (15754 (1,142) - (24231 41273
5% Exchange realignment - 470 173 237 - 1255 2135
RZE-—FZA=t-A A3 Morch 2011 138482 794,144 17,805 19712 6,098 42,306 1018547
Zithe Accumulated depreciafion
RAE: ond impaimen:
a2 At beginning of year 10376 589974 25,430 14,252 6,008 50,802 702932
AEENE Depreciation provided
it during the year 4175 02017 1921 2,253 - 2,585 52,731
e Disposals - (8,513] 423 (1,304] - - (10,242
HEHBAT Disposal of subsidicries
(Mzk41) [note 41] - 4 (17,408] (1,027) - (22,108) (34,637
EiAE Bxchange realignment - 378 125 154 - 1,263 1920
RZF——FZAZt-H A3l March 2011 14551 623960 15,245 14,328 6,098 38542 712724
BEAE: Nef carying amount
RZZ——%ZA=+-R A3 March 2011 123931 170,184 2,560 5,384 - 3764 305,823
RZE-TFZA=T-0 A 31 Morch 2010 128106 138,832 0911 5,889 - 5030 284777
AEBFAYVER  BERRERDE The Group's land included in property, plant and equipment with a net
B5128,436,0008 (= ——%F: carrying amount of HK$128,436,000 (2011: HK$100,786,000) is
100,786,000 7T ) 2 LI R &I situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium ferm lease.
R HBOEA
AEEET L RET  REBEMESRD Certain of the Group's land and building, equipment and machinery
BERTRITERREEERS TRITE were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
BB (M 32) - fo the Group [nofe 32).
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14, Y% - WBERFBE(E) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
AEEETRERESRBFLLEND Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
MYE=7 E—SBEFBEANUB parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are
HRERMIES7(a) included in note 37(a) to the financial statements.
AEERBELROFERER 2R The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for
K asE R AR E R ES use under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation
BEEmT and impairment losses are as follows:

)

GROUP
=F-=F ZT——F
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN Cost 85,987 70,931
ZFHE Accumulated depreciation (59,346) (55,827)
2FTRERE Accumulated impairment losses (182) (182)
AREFE Net book value 26,459 14,922
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15. REYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
£H
GROUP
—2--F —T——F
2012 2011
FBT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REZEHE Carrying amount at beginning of year 411,464 1,258,540
NE Additions — 4,135
HE-BRB AR (MFE41(a) Disposal of a subsidiary (note 41(a)) — (889,200
HE Disposals (187) (13,126)
NHEEE) Fair value changes 28,800 17,899
0E i Exchange realignment 15,513 33,216
RER 2 BREE Carrying amount af end of year 455,590 411,464
REBEZHREMEZATHEREEE @ £ The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease
D@ terms in the following geographical locations:
—E--“F=ZH=+—H 31 March 2012
HE
PRC
BB Hitin @ et
Hong Kong  Elsewhere Total

FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

FRERF A Medium term leases 20,350 — 20,350
REIFL long term leases — 435,240 435,240

20,350 435,240 455,590

—E——H=A=+—H 31 March 2011
H
PRC
BB Hithi [ st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRERF A Medium term leases 18,500 — 18,500
REIHEAD long term leases - 392,964 392,964

18,500 392,964 411,464
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15.

16.

REME(E)

AEEZREMEEN-F——F=A
=t HABUERAERYEMER
B HE BT ER AR R RIRART
BRAERGEEEEHLE - REVE
DEEKEHOEETE=7 54
MBZE-THBENYBRRME
37la) °

AREETRENEEEATRITER
AASEREHEE TRITEE 2EMH
F+32) °

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The Group's invesiment properties were revalued on an open marke,
existing use basis, as at 31 March 2012, by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified
property valuers. The invesiment properties are leased fo third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 37(a) to the financial statements.

Certain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as
security for cerfain banking facilities granted to the Group [nofe 32).

BRPYIE 16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
&8
GROUP

—F-F T F
2012 2011
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERF Balance at beginning of year 557,336 612,657
AEERE Additions during the year 695,526 370,252
EREFAHEE2MEMIE22)  Tansfer fo properties held for sale nofe 22) (28,053)  [449,329)
P 5 % Exchange realignment 22,946 23,756
FRER Balance at end of year 1,247,755 557,336
RERED 1D Current portion (401,499) (281,762
LN ) Non-current porfion 846,256 275,574
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fe)

(bl

(e)

EREEYE - #RRREERR
X fET£9,427,0008 T(ZF
——%:2,211,000%7T) °

RZE——F=A=+—H"' B2
X 5T & B4 A4 307,800,000
AR B E 1 365,453,000%
L) ZREWBTEES —EL
% a1 & 365,453,000 % T °
RpZE—FFHERALF B
RIFTNE-AZTN\HZB
AR ER o REFEREIG % IR L1
ZTERERR  ENFTRE
MOBRIBERTYE] -

RZTE——F=A+HA " K&
BE-ZBUFE-FIIUBES
8%+ AR (B 203,730,000 T
B—EME BEBEMNEE
& 2% One Island South 2012 @
([BEME] BE-_T—F
A=+ —HLEFE WESE
M 2512 20,373,000 L E B
FEEXN R E—FFHE
FAARRIABMA-T——F=
ATRBZRAM FR - ZE
ExKBFIeENDEARIME -
WRREEI BT L RE
Flo
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17. DEPOSITS PAID

(al

(bl

(c)

Deposits of HK$9,427,000 (2011: HK$2,211,000) were paid
for the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment.

As at 31 March 2011, deposits paid included a deposit of
HK$365,453,000 paid for the acquisiion of a parcel of land
in Shenyang, the PRC, at a consideration of approximately
RMB307,800,000 (equivalent fo HK$365,453,000). Further
details of the transaction were disclosed in the Company's
circular dated 28 January 2009. The deposit was reclassified as
"Properties under development” when the land use right certificate
of the respective parcel of land was obtained during the year.

On 15 March 2011

with an independent third parly in relation fo

, the Group enfered info a memorandum
the acquisition of a
property being the whole floor of 20th Floor, One Island South,
No.2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong (the
"Hong Kong Property”| at a consideration of HK$203,730,000.
During the year ended 31 March 2011, deposit amounting fo
HK$20,373,000 was paid by the Group for the acquisition of
the Hong Kong Property. Further details of the fransaction were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 16 March
2011. The acquisition was completed and the deposit was
reclassified as “land and building” under “Property, plant and
equipment” during the year.
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18. MEBAFER 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NG|
COMPANY
—F--F —F—F
2012 2011
FBT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE LTI  IRAAR Unlisted shares, atf cost 20,733 20,310
MBARZ KRR Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,017,359 942,606
VEREN Impairment * (49,069) (49,244)
968,290 893,362
—FREHIBRRE Portion due within one year, classified
BEZ M as current assets — (22,312)
968,290 871,050
RSB AR 2B Amounts due to subsidiaries (101,610 (83,926)
—FRNIELERRD Portion due within one year, classified
BEZHH as current liabilities 101,610 83,026
989,023 891,360
# REED FEETEE 549,069,000 # An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from subsidiaries
T(ZZE——4%: 49244000 7T) with a carrying amount of HK$49,069,000 (2011: HK$49,244,000)
(B REEEI 2 ETFTHEAT Y (before deducting the impairment loss) because the respective subsidiaries
REEARE  REAREMEBARE had been lossmaking for some time.
HELEE-
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FR ARAEAWEETHELRE
TR 5% B D F 2 RRERR
BERELE1750008 T(ZT——%:

7,460,000 7T) - M@~ B2 R 5K
RBARZ TR BBEHERRRE -
AARBEEMBARSEFANENR
BN —FRER M AFRBEE
Z M B AR T R AR h s HIRE
A—FREER  URABETZEMBER
Al EERER  HETHEERZR
FAR MRS HMALE —FREE -
BRAer s REEEEATERE -

ARAREEGE N ERMBARRIHE
TRRARADAIEERFE80,000,00078
T(ZZ——% :80,000,000%T) -
B AR A ARBNE BRENS
REREEEES °

18.

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

During the year, the Company received repayment from certain
subsidiaries and a write-back of impairment of HK$175,000 (2011:
HK$7,460,000) was recognised for those amounts due from
subsidiaries. The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured
and inferestfree. The balances with subsidiaries included in the current
liabilities are repayable on demand or within one year whereas
the balances with subsidiaries included in non-current assets are not
expected fo be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting
period and are considered as quasiequity loans to those subsidiaries
except for certain amounts due from subsidiaries which are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amounts of balances with the subsidiaries approximate to their fair
values.

The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000
(2011: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain
the required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
authorities.
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18. MIBARER(E)

TEMBARFEBNT :

=4

Name

RA(BB)ERERAT
Tysan (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited

RAWETRBRAR (M 1 K2)
Tysan Foundation Limited
(notes 1 and 2)

FARECRF)ERRB (M 1)

Tysan Construction [Macau) Limited fnofe 7

RAUNHEEBRARMZ2)
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited (nofe 2/

REWETIR(ER)BRARAM:Z 1)
Tysan Contractors (Hong Kong|
Limited fnote 1)

RETNIRERDAMZL])
Tysan Geotechnical Limited fnofe 1)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

B
ERIE S
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

B
Hong Kong
90
Hong Kong

P9

Macau

Bk
Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

EBTR
HREAMBRE,/
BAmEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

TR 2ETT
Ordinary HK$2

LMk
51,000,000 T
ERER
3,000,000 T
Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000

B
25,000 2797t
Ordinary
MOP25,000

Lk
10,000/ 7T
ERER
200,0007%7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred
HK$200,000

LRR2AT
Ordinary HK$2

EBR2BT
Ordinary HK$2

AT
ZREBDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable fo TEXB
the Company Principal activities
—F-F ZTF
2012 2011
100 100 RERKR
Investment holding
100 100 WESTHE
Foundation piling
100 100 AT
Foundation piling
100 100 HmEE
Machinery hiring
100 100 HEEER
REE AR
Project management
and provision of
consultancy services
100 100 AT MR

Site investigation



=4

Name

FERMIRAERAR(MZ])
Proficiency Equipment Limited fnote 1)

TETREEARDA(ME )
Proficiency Engineering Limited (nofe 7/

REERAR(HZ])
Llion Bright Limited fnofe 7/

RAEBBRARWZIR2)
Tysan Management Limited (nofes 1 and 2)

HMEERAR
Sun Sparkle Limited

ERARRT

Great Unison Limited

RARAERBR LA

Tysan Invesiment Limited

RANERRREGRAR
Tysan Property Development
& Investment Limited

FAREARATF
Tysan Consfruction Company Limited

TEREBRAR M)

Faithmark Investments Limited /note /)

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 201

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

e,
AR EF
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

a0
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

A5
Hong Kong

a5
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong
20
Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

80
Hong Kong
a0
Hong Kong

2ETR
BRAMmBREK/
RAEE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

gl
6,750,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

LR 2AET
Ordinary HK$2

TR 2B T
Ordinary HK$2

LB 1005 T
ERER2ET
Ordinary HK$100
Deferred HK$2

L@ 2ETT
Ordinary HK$2
TR BT
Ordinary HK$ 1
LR 2B
Ordinary HK$2
TR 2B
Ordinary HK$2

LRI 2B
Ordinary HK$2

EER2AET
Ordinary HK$2

—T-——f=A=+-H

TEEH

Principal activities

BREEREE
Machinery hiring
and frading

REETRRS
RgmEE
Provision of
engineering
services and

machinery hiring

BHBENEE
Machinery hiring
and frading
RER
Corporate
management

TERE

Corporate financing

TXRE

Corporate financing

NG} 3
ZBEADL
Percentage
of equity
affributable fo
the Company
“BCF ZFF
2012 2011
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

BEEK

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding

NERE

Property investment

2011/2012 F #
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18.

BB D AR ()

=4

Name

Tremend Yield limited (4752 7)
(note 1)

=HIREBER AR (ML)

Trions Investment Limited fnofe /)
EEREERAR (M)

Sure Faith Investment Limited fnote /)

EAEHERRRR(ME )

Duncan Properiies Limited fnofe 7/

Dragonhill Limited (4727 7)
[note 1)

MRk EBRAR (M 1)

Great Regent Invesiments Limited fnofe 7/

BUBRAR(MF])
Great Prosper Limited (nofe 7

RABWERE(XE)
BRARMETRS)

Tysan Property Development (Tianjin)
Company limited fnofes 1 and 3/

Cottontree Pacific Limited (4772 5)
(note 5)

Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited
(Wiat 1R 35)
(notes 1 and 5)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

ML
BRI e S
Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations

BE
Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
020
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong
BE
Hong Kong

hEl,/
REIAH

PRC/

Mainland China

RERUHE
Brifish Virgin
Islands ("BVI")
BRE

Bermuda

EBTR
HREAMmRE,/
RAHE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

LER2AT
Ordinary HK$2

ERR2AT
Ordinary HK$2

EBR2BT
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2B
Ordinary HK$2

LB 2ET
Ordinary HK$2

LRI 2ETT
Ordinary HK$2

LR 100ET

Ordinary HK$100

15,500,000%7T
US$15,500,000

LB AT
Ordinary HK$ 1

EBATO.1 BT
Ordinary HK$0.1

RAEELG
ZBEADL
Percentage
of equity
aftributable to TEEK
the Company Principal activities
—B-2F ZTF
2012 2011
100 100 NERE
Property investment
100 100 MERE
Property investment
100 100 ERLRYES
Property holding
100 100 RERK
Investment holding
100 100 RERK
Investment holding
100 100 RERKR
Investment holding
90 90 RERR
Investment holding
90 90 NEER
Property development
100 - RERK
Investment holding
100 - RERR

Investment holding



=L

Name

REBRAA(HZ]T)
Sparkle Key limited fnofe 7/

RERMECER)ERAA
(] 3k6)

Tysan Land (Shenyang)
limited fnotes 1, 3 and &)

FHEwE(LE)ERAT
(Bt ] -4Rk7)

Tysan Land (Shanghai] limited
fnotes 1, 4 and /)

FATRBRBERARMZ )
Tysan Engineering Company
limited (note 1)

FATR(BR)VERRR(MEL])
Tysan Engineering (H.K]
Company Limited (nofe 7]

EEERARAR
(=R WE1R7)
China Garden International Limited

["China Garden") fnotes 1 and /)

Allbright Investment limited
(Wt 1R7)
fnotes 1 and 7)

lronwood Pacific Limited
(BizF1 Rk7)
(notes 1 and /)

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—E——#=A=+—H

EREMBRARAT |-

31 March 201

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

e,
AR E R
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

BE
Hong Kong

e/
REIAH

PRC/

Mainland China

HE/
REIA

PRC/

Mainland China

80
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

80
Hong Kong

RERARS
BVI

RERTES
BVI

EBTR
HREAMBRE/
RAHE
Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid registered/
share capital

LRk
10,0007
Ordinary
HK$10,000

40,000,000 7T
US$40,000,000

20,500,000 7T
US$20,500,000

gl
10,0007
Ordinary
HK$10,000

s
20,600,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

LB 1008
Ordinary HK$100

LRER 100%T
Ordinary US$100

LEAR 100FET
Ordinary US$100

KAE LG
ZBEADL
Percentage
of equity
affributable fo
the Company
ZE-ZF T F
2012 2011
97 97
97 97
100 100
70 70
70 70
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities

HEER

Investment holding

UE S

Property development

UE S

Property development

BEEK

Investment holding

RESEER

W iR

Provision of electrical
and mechanical
services

BEEK

Investment holding

BEEK

Investment holding

BEER

Investment holding

2011/2012 F #
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18. MIBARER(Z) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

. 108

BETR
T BEEMmBRE ANEIES
TRk EEnE RAEE ZRER DL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity
218 registration paid registered/ attributable to FEER
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal acfivifies
e
2012 2017

Federated Resources Limited EEREZEHS LB 1007 T 100 100 REER
(a1 R7) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment holding
(notes 1 and 7)

Beneficial Enterprises limited RERUHES BB 100AT 100 100 RERK
(BE 1 R7) BVI Ordinary US$100 Investment holding
(notes 1 and /)

AHBREBERAR(HEIR) 0 LRER2AT 100 100 RERK

Red Shine Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding
(notes 1 and 7)

BRIEEERARWZIR)) B LRk 2B 100 100 MERE

Hiat Investment Limited fnofes 1 and /) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property investment

ERBBRAR (M I1R) 90 LR 2B 100 100 REZK

Carriway Limited fnofes 7 and 7) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding

BRTBRRR(MZFIR7) 0 TER2AT 100 100 RERRK

Fund House limited fnofes 7 and 7 Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment holding

ERNEEE(LE) hE/ 500,000%7 100 100 MEER
BRRR(ME] - 3R7) hE A, US$500,000 Property management

Duncan Property Management PRC/

(Shanghai) Company Limited Mainland China
fnotes 1, 3 and /)

FREREREE hE,/ 5,000,000% 7T 100 100 MERE
FEEEBR AR Rl US$5,000,000 Property investment
(st 1 3R7) PRC/

Shanghai China Garden Infernational Mainland China

Redl Estate Development &
Management Company Limited
fnotes 1, 3 and 7]

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT



ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 ZE—Z$=A=+—H

ME AR ER (=) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

BETR
SRR, HREAMBRE/ AT
BaINE S RAEE ZBERDLL
Place of Nominal value of Percentage
incorporation/ issued and fully of equity

i registration aid registere aftributable to £
78 g paid registered/ butabl FEER
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities

—2-ZF _T——F
2012 2011

FERBEERE e,/ 10,000,000 T 100 100 MEER

REGLBRAR FEIA US$10,000,000 Property development

(Bl 3R7) PRC/
Shanghai Changning Duncan Property Mainland China

Development Company limited

fnotes 1, 3 and /)
LBEREERS hEl,/ 100,000%7T 100 100 AR YES

BRARME]4R7) PEIAL US$100,000 R
Shanghai Duncan Property Consuliing PRC/ Provision of property

Company Limited fnofes 7, 4and 7). Mainland China consuliancy services

Bt Notes:

1. FEEHBATRA - 1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. EEBRHEREEREAREBEAT 2. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends [other than a fixed
SRR B 2 AFIRRB10EE T non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
AR REEREGESE Y ARE year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
%Y ETIEDHIRERIN) - INER dividends exceeds HK$1 billion], no rights to vote at general meetings,
RIEEAS HEE - RN SEEE no rights fo receive any surplus on a refurn of capital on a windingup [other
BWEERNEE Y FARBCLER than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the
B BEBEARY  EZAT T LR ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-
PR AMARERED S gk up of a sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share).
RS RFL 10,00018%7T) -

3. sy g am TUAR B oh B ) ST AN 3. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
EEME - the PRC law.

4. ETmE eGSR A 4. These entities are registered as Sinoforeign joint ventures under the PRC
BB - law.

5. REHTEAERIMKY - 5. These entities were newly incorporated during the year.

6., NAEERN BEREEEHT 6. During the year, the board of directors authorised to increase its

it & A& £40,000,000% T # &
58,300,000 7T - LR EFBIERS
BRPYEEB I EETERE -
It REEHRAEEFTERBA
AERBEEYETHEEZAELD
75142,740,000% 7T 1 & HIR
& R-ZT-"FRALR B
MEREEEBAE R -

registered capital from US$40,000,000 to US$58,300,000 for
financing the construction works relating fo properties under development
in Shenyang, the PRC. Accordingly, the Group had authorised but not
contracted for commitments in respect of capital contributions fo the
subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$ 142,740,000 at the end of
the reporting period. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on
7 June 2012, the increase of registered capital was approved by the
relevant government authority.
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18. MEBARRER(E)

Mt : (&)

7.

EF RZE-ZEF+—A+HA"
KRR —HE2ENRBRRIEAFEE
BIR A EHE R A 60% 1 & 1) Mt
BARI(EN o ZE BB AR ARG RE
MEARLBERERREERZ
e AR AE - (bJAlbright Investment
limited R LI B AR KB EBIR
RAIREBEEEHEZABRA
Al * (c) Ironwood Pacific Limited &
HItEARIBRIEEBRRF - (d)
Federated Resources Limited & E B
BREAIENHERAGAREERE
BERWERELEEARRE R
Beneficial Enterprises Limited K E i /&
NEEBRTBERAR - BEMEERE
(EB)BERARREEERMERAF
(RBEREBOLERNHEB R
A EERFEREEREAE
AN EEWRE  NWARERE
300,000,000 T (Bl i th (B B &
BREMBI)RESKEERES
60% RN B A R 40% BHER A
$#£94,087,0007% TR R E AR
K o BRERBBERES 60%
BEfNBARBERARME(L
B)AERAR([EAHREE]) K 20%
Bt - B A BIRB B AR
B HER) 20% B  fiER —E——
F— A+ VB TK - 150,000,000
BTHRERBEZZT——F=
A=+—BLEFEIN EHRE
150,000,000 B TRBEZE=E—=
FZRA=+—HIFEX - Lk
BIERRERZZIE o

It - #8 £ &300,000,0007% T
BRFEEBRBRRESNREELR
281,567,000 7% 7T B2 1% ik IR R 2
HEE 94,087,000 L2 K E
FERE75,654,0008 it AR
BYREEMA o

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

7.

In last year, on 15 November 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, Duncan Properties Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with non-controlling equity holders (the “Vendors')
of each of the 60%owned subsidiaries, (a] China Garden International
Limited and its subsidiary, Shanghai China Garden International Real
Estate Development & Management Company Limited, (b) Allbright
Investment Limited and its subsidiaries, Red Shine Investment Limited and
Shanghai Duncan Property Consulting Company Limited, [c) ronwood
Pacific Limited and its subsidiary, Hiat Investment Limited, [d) Federated
Resources Limited and ifs subsidiaries, Carriway Limited and Shanghai
Changning Duncan Property Development Company Limited, and ()
Beneficial Enferprises Limited and its subsidiaries, Fund House Limited,
Duncan Property Management (Shanghai) Company Llimited and
Bestful Consultants Limited, (collectively known as "Then 60%-owned
Subsidiaries”] to acquire from the Vendors 40% equity interest in and
the rights and benefits in the shareholders loans of HK$94,087,000
in aggregate to the Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries for the total cash
consideration of HK$300,000,000, being the total of the shares
consideration and the debt consideration. Since the Vendors held 20%
equity inferest of Tysan land (Shanghai) Limited (“Tysan Land") through
Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries, the Group also acquired 20% equity
inferest of Tysan Land through the acquisition. The acquisition was
completed on 18 January 2011. Consideration of HK$ 150,000,000
was paid during the year ended 31 March 2011 and the remaining
consideration of HK$ 150,000,000 was paid during the year ended
31 March 2012. Such acquisition was accounted for as an equity
transaction.

Accordingly, the credit difference of HK$75,654,000 between the
fofal consideration of HK$300,000,000 and aggregate amounts of the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests of HK$281,567,000 and
the loans from non-controlling shareholding of HK$94,087,000 was
recorded in the retained profits in the equity.



18. MIBL B (E)

Hiz - (4)

8.

EE - RZF-FFNALN
A ARFREHFZAMBAAF
Consco Investment Company Llimited
([Conscol) bA 167,766,000 7T A
REBBRAEBR D AFHERBER
RRISE(ZR)ARAR(TRE2R
TDRBERKEERARBRAA
2 200% Bt - HUB S ATTAR - R
RERARERARKARARZE
BHEAR

RZE—ZFXB+H £AQF
ZHERENBRRIEBHEBRAA
(EBHEE] ARRZ2ENBA
] Stonehill Limited ([ Stonehill ) & &=
FRZ(RE)REERAR([KEXR
TRENE—ZBLE= I LHE
B MERERSHRAARELE
Fi 8 2 7] Consco X LI B A RI K #
B KEER AT M2 HRERER
REFMEN RER((LESHE]) -
HESHEER-_Z-ZFTH-TA
Bk o P2 E—FFBENIH
HRMFE41(a) °

ERAFIZARRIMNERARIRESTRR
HAKB AFEEXBEREATENE
RAEBARIHEEFEZHMBAT -

A EMH B AR E S HA

BRI R R T

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 ZE—Z$=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

8.

In lost year, on 18 August 2010, Consco Investment Company Limited
["Consco”], a then non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired additional 20% interest in its subsidiary, Tianjin International
Building Company Limited “TIBC") from Tianjin Consruction Engineering
Group (Holding] Co. Lid. ["TCE"), the non-controlling interest of TIBC, at
a consideration of HK$167,766,000. TIBC became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Consco upon the completion of such acquisifion.

On 12 June 2010, Tianjin Development Company Limited ["TDC"),
a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Stonehill Limited
("Stonehill’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tian An
(Tianjin) Invesiment Company Limited ("TAIC"), a third party, enfered info
a disposal agreement to dispose of all of their equity inferest in and the
rights and benefits in the shareholders’ loan to Consco, and ifs subsidiary,
TIBC, to an independent third party (the "Disposal’). The Disposal was
completed on 29 October 2010. Further details of the transaction are
included in note 41(a) to the financial statements.

The above fable lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the net assefs of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.
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19. BENTRENRE —HHEQ
AIZER

(a)

BIEEEFE
N &
BENEZER

BB

BELRIRRAEBER 28
FEETERSY -

b) RE-HEABERAAZERE
BREAGKEZERDARR
24,560,000 T(ZF——% :
24,560,000 7T) « AEEM
SEREBEAB-_Z-—_F=A
=t—HBTZEARERE -

() AEBEREKEELRESHETG
BRISRERMFE 24 -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE
&8
GROUP

lal =F-=F —T—F

2012 2011

FET TFET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Share of net assets 31,083 25,084

Amounts due from associates 2,082 1,418

loans to associates 8,150 3,250

less: Impairment

(bl

[c)

41,315 30,652
(337) (304)

40,978 30,348

The amounts due from associates and loans to associates are
unsecured, inferestfree and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The loan from an associate included in the Group's non-current
liabilities of HK$24,560,000 (2011: HK$24,560,000] is
unsecured, interestfree and will not be repayable within 12
months from 31 March 2012

The Group's frade receivable balances with the associates are
disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.
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1SR /45 )
BEXR(E)
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19.

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d)  Particulars of principal associates are as follows:

AEEEN
s &1 FRERBDL
ROFEREE Percentage
Particulars of ownership
and nominal  FEBAR L 3 interest
£#18 value of issued Place of  attributable TREH
Name shares held  incorporation  to the Group Principal activities
NEREBRLA FRE B 0 50 RERR
Turbo Dragon Investment Limited HEfE1%7x  Hong Kong Investment holding
Ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
RARETIRARAT FHCE B & 49 REtETR
([RARETR]) E{E BT Hong Kong BETE
Tysan Building Consfruction Ordinary shares Provision of building
Company limited ("TBC") of HK$1 each and consfruction works
BRARE(RP)BRATF B @A B 49 REtETR
Mac Tysan Construction (Macau) EE1RMT Macau RETIR
Limited Ordinary shares Provision of building
of MOP1 each and construction works
FATIRRIBRAA B @A £ 49 REETR
Tysan Project Management limited AE1%mT  HongKong BETR
Ordinary shares Provision of building
of HK$1 each and consfruction works
RAESHARAF BT B 5 40 —REH
([=RES )" EE1%L  Hong Kong Ceneral trading
Tysan Trading Company Limited Ordinary share
(“TTCL") * of HK$1 each
* £E R -_E—FTEHA * In last year, on 22 September 2010, the Group disposed of in

aggregate 10% inferest in and the rights and benefits in the shareholder's
loan of HK$200,000 to TTCL to two directors of the Company of a
fotal consideration of HK$776,000. Immediately after the disposal, the
Group's equity inferest in TTCL reduced from 50% to 40% and the Group
is no longer in a position fo cast the majority of the votes in the meefings

Z+ZH AEENBRE
776,000 BTLRAARAIMEE
EHERAEH AL 0%
R H 200,000 T2 REE
R R R A% - BN
Sk AEERRRBSH 2K
R S0%EEA0%  WEERS
BHEERGRLTBEZER
RLZERERE  MBRLERE
DHKBAEEZBENT
BRRALE 2 EMFEHR
B BREIE 41 () o

of the board of directors of TTCL and accordingly, TTCL became an
associate of the Group. Further defails of this disposal are included in
note 41(b) of financial statements.
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19. BHERQRERRKE —FHER

A2 E()
O EBREATZEMNT (59

ERINEERREEZEARE
B E R AR BRIV A S
BIATIA R E R A KB D s 2
KEBMZERR - EERB - F
HipB = AR @3 BARBRIT
o

THRITARASEEBEAT
BTSRRI AREE -

A
Wz

il

20. BRAVESABRZRE

REB LM ZBIRE -
mmE
RABZIFEMES - HHE

FR - E——FN-_T——%F=H
=+ —HZRACIARIEEERS -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND LOAN FROM AN
ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

(d)  Particulars of principal associates are as follows: (Cont'd)

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, affected the Group's share of results
of the associates or formed a substantial portion of the Group's
inferests in associates. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of the Group's associates exiracted from their financial statements:

—F--F —F—F

2012 2011

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Assels 163,008 145,098
Liabilities 95,033 89,099
Revenue 255,952 168,939
Profits 11,378 9,678

20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS
&E
GROUP
=F-=F —FF
2012 2011
THET THAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,
at market value 3,282 4183
Unlisted fund in the PRC, at quoted price — 118,750

3,282 122,933

The above investments at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were classified
as held for trading.
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BREBRRTNE

(HE16)
FRLEZYE
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21.  INVENTORIES

)

GROUP
—F--F —F—F
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials 11,123 2,559
Spare parts and others 10,265 9,065
21,388 11,624

22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

£
GROUP

ZE-ZF %

2012 2011

FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

At beginning of year 439,569 197,649
Transfer from properties under development

(note 16) 28,053 449,329

Properties sold during the year (16,774) (210,148

Exchange realignment 15,402 2,739

At end of year 466,250 439 569

The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China
and are held under long term leases.
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23. BEEH 23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
58
GROUP
—E--F —ZT——F
2012 2011
FET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEBMAHNTRRZRR Amounts due from cusfomers for confract works 147,416 88,407
REFBBENTIRE ZHEA Amounts due to customers for contract works (184,099)  (224,428)

(36,683)  (136,021]

PTEEHE 2 B XA B E R F 1 Confract costs incurred plus recognised

A EIE MR R AR B R &R profits less recognised losses to date 5,446,589 4,489 462
B B IR Y R R less: Progress billings received and receivable (5,483,272) (4,625,483)

(36,683)  [136,021)

24. FEWE SR 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES
NEBREAMITEEEH T ZER The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
B oRTEBHRP I —REEH sfandards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers
BB A(EURE2BRIN) - HEZELK other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
BB THRE o AERN Xt kA fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
EEVERESEFEASEIAREEA the fact that the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
M WEECERRARER ZENR - diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
AEEWERZEETHAEMRERS The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
ESHMEE - EREHETH AR over its frade receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest
B bearing.
£E
GROUP

—B-—F —T——%

2012 2011

FET BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEUE S8R Trade receivables 432,994 454,764

NERIE] Impairment (2,922) (30)

430,072 454,734

FEULZ 5 BE Srh ) 4E JE U B 42 D 7] Included in the trade receivables are amounts due from associates of
ZIE4,869000E T(ZF —— & HK$4,869,000 (2011: HK$5,696,000), which are repayable on
5,696,000/ 7T) - KBBR8 KHNE similar credit ferms to those offered fo the major cusfomers of the Group.

BTAREIEEPMEFTES -
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:

£H
GROUP

—E--F —ZT—F
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables:
Within 90 days 267,116 309,538
91 to 180 days 1,209 1,715
181 to 360 days 3,149 3,294
Over 360 days 1,830 875
273,304 315,422
Refention receivables 156,768 139,312
430,072 454,734

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

L3

GROUP
—F--F =—F——F
2012 2011
FBT TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
At beginning of year 30 30
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) 2,876 —
Amount written off as uncollectible (30) -
Exchange realignment 46 -
At end of year 2,922 30

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables of
HK$2,922,000 (2011: HK$30,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amounts before
provision of HK$8,766,000 (2011: HK$30,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.
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24. BWEZERR(E)

ERHARBERTFREZEKE S
R BRERDATANT -

ME B IERE
ERHIAEQ0H
BRI BE270H
2iBHEE 270 B

MEBHIERE 2 ERFUREAE Y
EBOHBNELNTIREFAR - 28
HYE Y IR E < AR E K 8 EAL
BAEZRIRGLENBLELEM -
KEBELER  ARRESERA AR
FEEEYBEAZH ALFNREAR
2HRE - HEELERZEEFEL

24.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The aged analysis of the frade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered fo be impaired is as follows:

]

GROUP
—F--F ZF——F
2012 2011
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 422,504 448,850
1 to 90 days past due 1,209 1,715
91 to 270 days past due 232 3,294
More than 270 days past due 283 875
424,228 454,734

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relafe fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate fo a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

TR o quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.
25, HipfEWzhiE ENANSERITS 25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
s AT
GROUP COMPANY
—B--F —T——F B —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET TET FET 7T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H eI ZIE Other receivables 21,452 31,911 — —
BNRERE 2 Prepayments and deposits 41,124 16,437 220 138
62,576 48,348 220 138

BB BB ED B HIRRE - A
biligr e e MEERY ETMEDE
22 RMFIAAR
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None of the above assefs is either past due or impaired. The financial
assefs included in the above balances relate fo receivables for which
there was no recent history of default.
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26. TTEERmIA 26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
k3= GROUP
—F-=F —T—F
2012 2011
BE afi BE a8E
Assets Liabilities Assefs Liabilities

FiEr FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REIINE 2528 Forward currency accumulators 110 140 87 26
eSS Interest rate swaps — 11,006 — 5,821
110 11,146 87 5,847
I8 AIEANEAMER) ©  Porfion classified as non-current:
ESE Inferest rafe swaps — (11,006) - (5,821
BIEAER (D Current portion 110 140 87 26

AEED AL ZEERINE R RES
BAENRNREE - DAEIRHINE K&
KEfg - ZFRBMINESNLIFEER
HhAE - WIRATER AR - FY
HOTE TR RHERE) 5,276,000
BIL(ZFT——% :4,026,00087T)]5
AAFAZBRERA - ZFERIAZ
FREEEANFERS - LRiTESR
TAMPRSHAEER i RO HA &
BROEL 2 S RMEETT -

The Group has entered into various forward currency accumulators
confracts and inferest rafe swaps to manage ifs foreign currency and
exchange rate exposures. These forward currency confracts are not
designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Changes in the fair value, net, of nonhedging derivatives
amounting to HK$5,276,000 (2011: HK$4,026,000) were charged
fo the income statement during the year. The carrying amounts of
those financial instruments are the same as their fair values. The above
fransactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with
creditworthy financial institutions with no recent history of default.

2011/2012 F #

119 I



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W % W5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 ZZ2——%#=A=+—H

27. RERBITERF ERFEARRE
BRFIRE

EHER
—HiEHFR
—RBIEER

TERER AR
Re hRT&EF
RRHRE

Bzt

WeNA

ATHIEHEEHE -
e

B
P
ARH

BT

ARBAAERLBAREMER A
- RESNEERIRGI N EIE - EER
NEERHRTE  AEERESBERE
ETINEEBZRT BARKRIRA
HiEH -
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

=8

GROUP
i  ZE-=F —T——F
Notes 2012 2011
FET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Time deposits:

— other time deposits (a) 134,238 491,652
- sfructured deposits (b) 74,010 296,875
Total ime deposits (c) 208,248 788,527
Cash and bank balances (a) 275,816 321,484
Restricted cash (d) 79,621 56,286
Total 563,685 1,166,297
£E

GROUP
—F--F —F—F
2012 2011
FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Denominated in:

United States dollar [“USD”) 1,409 2,203
Euro ("EUR") 5,090 10,273
Macao patacas ["MOP’) 407 314
Renminbi ("RMB”) 414,737 801,701
HK$ 142,042 351,806

563,685 1,166,297

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange
business.



27. RERRITHERF EHEARRE

28.

PRAEIRS (4)
Hia

la)  ROEFREGRBIEFIMNEFEZ
FRAREDAMNE - EREFEHAE
TRZEFZHR  atXE=EAT
CRTEAREE AR S F KM
© IR B T BT SN R R AR
B BITHERA AL EIHNE
WEL 2 FEREEZRIT -

N

b) &BRUEFAEFETIHBR T
R REBERAI - BRIER
HMERERITEB T2 A2 ERE
PmKs - AEETEREBILEER
AREEFRERR -

) ZTE——F=ZA=t—Bz#&#EF+L
AT RER =18 A 1% 218 2 7 2
F50119,262 0008 7T ©

d REFEBBER RNEERTE
FPREBEZRRTMEZC KA
217,946,000 T(ZF — —F:
56,286,000 7T) + £ 7] AR EE
HEME- - XRHIREZEBRET
61,675,000 T(ZE——%: &)
ERBAKEZRITEEZKRARTE
REERITRP ZERFEN -

DTRRBFHEZFRBEE

A #2384 K8 315,000,000 T H &
—RARNEBEFBEB2REED
LDINEZEZEBDE - EXEEW
FN_T——F+_PF+ARE -7
31,500,000 B TREE-T——F =
A=+ —BLEFEHKE

REREMHREENESH  AKHE
ARTEFE 120,794,000 T (FfizE 14)
WERMEEDBRFHEZIFRDE
E - ZEBNFCERTRITERAE
EERRITEREZERPIEI2) -9
EZHERBERRRE_FT——F0
A=t+—HB7m(IE46)
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27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND

28.

RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Nofes:

[a)  Cash at banks eams inferest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days
and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and eam inferest at the respective fime deposit rates. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

[b)  The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and
are stated at amortised cost. The interest rates on the structured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in currency exchange rate between USD
and HK$. The Group uses structured deposits primarily to enhance the
refurn on investment.

[c)]  Included in the 31 March 2011 balance were time deposits of
HK$119,262,000 of which the original maturity was more than three
months when acquired.

(d)  Pursuant fo relevant regulations in the PRC, deposits of HK$ 17,946,000
(2011: HK$56,286,000) received from the pre-sale of properties
under development under designated bank accounts can only be used
for the construction of the relevant properties. The remaining balance of
the restricted cash of HK$61,675,000 (2011: Nil) represented a fime
deposit maintained in an escrow bank account pursuant fo the terms of
the Group's banking facilities.

NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 24 November 2011, the Group entered into a preliminary sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell
an owner-occupied property being the whole floor of 11th Floor,
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at @
total cash consideration of HK$315,000,000. A formal sale and
purchase agreement was signed on 7 December 2011. Deposits of
HK$31,500,000 were received during the year ended 31 March
2012.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the owner-occupied property with a
carrying amount of HK$120,794,000 (note 14) of the Group, was
reclassified as non-current asset classified as held for sale. The owner
occupied property was pledged fo a bank as security for banking
facilities granted to the Group [note 32). The disposal of the property
was complefed subsequent fo the end of the reporting period on 31

May 2012 (note 46).

2011/2012 F #
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29. BHEZRARESTIE 29. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
NEZRRFE  BENESRFNBSH An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
RZBRBRAITIT period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
] NS
GROUP COMPANY
g —EF——% B —T——%F
2012 2011 2012 2011

FET TET FET TIET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

JENE SRR : Trade payables:
30BHA Within 30 days 167,274 173,630 848 13
31BZQ0H 31 1o 90 days 21,341 3,407 —
Q1HZ180H 91 1o 180 days 1,193 203 — —
180B AL Over 180 days 1,358 7,753 — —
191,166 184,993 848 15
FERE & Retention payables 58,314 105,250 — -
FERT IR Accruals 236,400 190,716 771 789
485,880 480,959 1,619 804
ENEBSEZHARE  —REZHA The frade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally seffled on
NtHE- 90-day terms.

30. HEAZUE - CWETE R 30. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS

E/ QL] IN ADVANCE

HuENZES AR E  ELHEDRH Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average
A—EB -SSR -_ZT——&F=F term of one month except for an amount payable to Vendors of
=+—BENEHFIE 150,000,000 HK$150,000,000 as at the 31 March 2011 which was paid on 16
BTER-ZE——=F+-A+,BX December 2011.

) BIERSN ©
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31.

32.

EWET =

R-ZE——F#=ZfF=+—H Bii&
ERBRERTYERESHRFA M
EVMEHECNERARTPKIR TS
AEERMENTERABEREENE -
HRERPIIARL  MENEZFRE
B0%  RPARAREXNETE ° K
SEMBFE ZELEHARE -

M ERITEE

=H

BEA
FITER

REA
BITER

RITREBE

Unsecured:
Bank loans

Secured:
Bank loans
Instalment loans

Total bank borrowings

32.
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. DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 March 2012, deposits received represented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the pre-sale contracts of
properties under development and sale contracts of properties held
for sale of the Group. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties
when they were still under development. As contracted with cusfomers,
deposits were paid to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale
contracts. Such amounts held by the Group are non-interestbearing.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

GROUP
“E-ZEZR=+-H —E——&=ZfA=1-H
31 March 2012 31 March 2011

BB K

ik ik

Effective Effective
inferest rate HIRR FHBT  interest rate R FEL
(%] Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
1.5-3.3 20122016 428,125 1.42.4 20122015 371,472
1.8 20122014 8,625 1.7 20122014 21,250
0.9-1.7 20122031 161,528 0.8 20112022 67,992
170,153 89,242
598,278 460,714
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32. MEIRITIEE(E)

£HE (%)

RETHIRE AT :
AR TIHENEEZRITREE -
R—FAHZ B

FEF
FoEEFRE(BEEEMT)
BRRF

=S iEi)

RERDHME  AREESAREE
REEHERZRITER7,553,000/8 7T
(ZZ——%:20,582,000/& L) 2 &t
ABIEIM BIRITIER - YD M AR—5F
AHIZBREE 2 BNRITEN -

RBBITER 2 BIHER - HER1TE
FEEBESEAR RZT—ZFR
ZE——HF=ZRA=+—HZER—FRA
s 1% Bk - 2 223,899,000 T &
107,800,000 : RZE——F k=
T——F=-A=1+—HZERE=FX
£+2101,384,0007% 7T & 96,091,000
BT RZE-—ZFRZT——F=
A=T—HZERE=FZFHF(R
EERME )X 2179,652,000%
TL R} 22575000087 RZE—=
FR-ZF——F=ZA=Z+—BZER
FF A 293,343,000% Tt &
31,073,000 T °
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32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

GROUP (Conta)
—EB--F ZF—F
2012 2011
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Analysed info:
Bank borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand 231,452 128,382
In the second year 96,980 85,937
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 176,503 215,322
Beyond five years 93,343 31,073
598,278 460,714
Portion due within one year,
classified as current liabilities (231,452) (128,382
Long term portion 366,826 332,332

For the purpose of the above analysis, the Group's bank loans in the
amount of HK$7,553,000 (2011: HK$20,582,000) containing
a repayment on demand clause are included within current inferest-
bearing bank borrowings and analysed info bank loans payable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the bank loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of the bank loans are: HK$223,899,000 and
HK$107,800,000 payable within one year or on demand as at
31 March 2012 and 2011, respectively; HK$101,384,000 and
HK$96,091,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2012
and 2011, respectively; HK$179,652,000 and HK$225,750,000
payable in the third to fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2012 and
2011, respectively; HK$93,343,000 and HK$31,073,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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M ESRITEE(E) 32. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)
EEFHE) GROUP [Contd)
AEEHRRITEEDHAEENE The Group's secured bank borrowings were secured by certain of its
EHRZREED AI4£221,136,000 land and building, equipment and machinery [note 14), investment
A T(Z T — — % :142,002,000% properties note 15) and non-current asset classified as held for sale
70) ~ 20,350,000 (= E——%F: (note 28] with carrying amounts of HK$221,136,000 (2011:
18,500,000 7T ) & 120,794,000 HK$142,002,000), HK$20,350,000 (2011: HK$18,500,000)
T ZE——F B 2T REF - and HK$120,794,000 (2011: Nil), respectively, at the end of the
REBEBR(HT14)  REME T reporting period.
15) R BRFEEZIFRBEE (M
28) KR -
REB 2 BEAEITHEE 18,157,000 The Group's unsecured bank borrowing amounting to HK$ 18,157,000
BIL(ZE——%F 124,961,000/ 1) (2011: HK$24,961,000] is guaranteed by the government of the
TR B BRI T E BT IR AR Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
AN KRR EFHAREE THERR In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
BBz EEREBZE RN 39() borrowing facilities granted to cerfain of the Company's subsidiaries
(note 39(al).
AEEMARTEEDRFIHM KRG All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating inferest
B RITEEZREERE LN FEMA rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
e fair values.
AEENZREBREN ZRITEER The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in
HEMNT : various currencies are as follows:
—E--F =—ZET——F
2012 2011
FET TIET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 571,948 445,325
BT Euro 7,770 15,389
Ht Japanese Yen 18,560 -
598,278 460,714
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33. IELERIR 33. DEFERRED TAX
RAFER  EEHBREREELE The movements in deferred tax liabiliies and assets during the year are
BT - as follows:
EAHIEE & Deferred tax liabilities
&8 GROUP
BE
BHAE

EXr TERD
KEME  Allowance in

Revaluation excess SRk
of investment of related  Withholding et
properties  depreciation taxes Total

FEr FErT FET FErT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZZE—FFNA—H Al Apri| 2010 (270,904 (10,221) 63,902) (345,027)
FARBREK Deferred tax charged to

Bk 2 IEE the income statement

BRI (M 10) during the year [note 10) (4,472 [6,671) 45,019 (56,162)
AR ERM Withholding tax paid

FEB 2~ RIE b on repafriation of eamings

Z B from subsidiaries

ZTEIE in Mainland China — — 4,176 4,176
HE—RKE Disposal of a subsidiary

NEI(fFFE41(a)) (note 41(a)) 208,849 — Q04 209,753
P 1 % Exchange realignment [7,610] — (134) (7,744)
RoE——4F At 31 March

=—A=+—HEK 2011 and

—E——FmMA—H ] Aprﬂ 2011 (74,137) (16,892) (103,975) (195,004)
FAREBRR Deferred tax credited/|charged)

A (HB) 2 fo the income statement

ELERTE K 10) during the year [note 10 [7.625) (4,142 7,675 (4,092
[E 5, A% Exchange realignment (3,150) — (7,874) (11,024)
RZT—_F

=A=+—H At 31 March 2012 (84,912) (21,034) (104,174) (210,120
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FRHARER
ZEAEBA(Hi3E 10)
54

—F——5=A=t+-R
&_E——EEH g

FRRNBREEIR
ZIEERIE (ML 10)
0 5 AR

R-E——F=A=+—H

ARBERBAELEZHABRR
226,830,000/ (= & — —
204,421,000/ 7T) - A BIEEIREAIE
HIHBRBBEZ AR AR ERBEN -
REELBRMBARMEL 2 ZF
BRATEHIARECHEELE - B
FERBUE M AR R B IR BB ERET
AT °

REFERXAESFATERAER
&) R BRI RSN E B EAE
IMREBETIR RS BHM10%TEH
B ZBERER-_TTNF-—A—HE
ERWERR _ZTLF+_A=1—
AZEELZ AN - fidh EREE I
REEMRERVAEE]BHERE - Al
AREEABE 2 EMBBRE - Fik - K
SERRERNDBEAMMKT 2 HERF
RE-_ET\F-A-HEELZEF
ik 2 BB BATRIH -
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)
Deferred tax assefs
GROUP
TR ER
e
Provision
of land
appreciation
tax
FET
HK$'000
1 April 2010 63,071
Deferred tax credited 1o the income statement
during the year [note 10} 33,770
Exchange realignment 3,305
31 March 2011
and 1 April 2011 100,146
Deferred tax charged to the income stafement
during the year [note 10) (3,982)
Exchange realignment 3,816
At 31 March 2012 99,980

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$226,830,000
(2011: HK$204,421,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some fime and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant 1o the Corporate Income Tax ("CIT") law, a 10% withholding
fax is levied on dividends declared fo foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings affer 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on

dividends distributed by its subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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33.

g

IEERLIR(E)
EEFEEE (%)

ARRBRA FEBRZ BB LB EI R
BHER -

33. DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets [Conta))

There are no income tax consequences attaching fo the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

34. B . SHARE CAPITAL
B Shares
—E-—F —E——%F
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
VETE Authorised:
2,000,000,000 f% &h% 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
EEO. 10T Ll of HK$0.10 each 200,000
BEITREAR Issued and fully paid:
872,665 003 (=F——4%&F : 872,665,903
870,115,903 %) &% (2011: 870,115,903)
EEO. 108 Tz LBk ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 87,266 87,011

FR AAARBEREETEMNUR
BESKROS2EL(-ZZE——%: %
BIRERO0.82ETREM1.46ETT)
172,550,000 B (ZF——4F:
23,800,0008% B {3 K 1,000,000 %
B BREMBOIOB T2 KRG - 4
RBefRER2091,000ET(ZF——
%F 1 20,976,000 7T) (HIBRFXZA) ©
& #856,0008 (= T — — F:
11,023,0008 70) 2 RIBE R A
BiTERmBRERBEREREE

BRE

AR EIRBRCER 82 FIE RN Mk
P5E35

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

During the year, 2,550,000 shares (2011: 23,800,000 shares
and 1,000,000 shares) of HK$0.10 each were issued for cash at
a subscription price of HK$0.82 per share (2011: HK$0.82 per
share and HK$1.46 per share, respectively) pursuant to the exercise
of the Company's share options for a total cash consideration, before
expenses of HK$2,091,000 (2011: HK$20,976,000). An amount
of HK$856,000 (2011: HK$11,023,000] was transferred from the
share option reserve fo the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.

Share options

Defails of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 35
fo the financial statements.



35. EBRiERTE

ARERERL—BBRESSI(TE
8)) REAKERINEEFLERZ
RERSEERBER K MR - %atE
ZABERZHEFERBBRANBZES(R
BEVIFITESR) RMAREEMES -

B AERFIRIBR AT B 2 MARTTIERE
BER=HE  AATFEBARAE
RIS #ITRIn 2 10% °
ARBZFTEEELNT -

E:y

Purpose

%

2k

\

Participants

AT BT EBRAE N
RERERABETET
BAZBDH

Total number of ordinary shares
available for issue and the
percentage of the issued share
capifal that it represents as at
the date of the annual report

BE2EERERE
Maximum entitlement of
each participant

RIBRERE VA
REBE T R

Period within which the
securities must be taken
up under an option
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who confribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including independent nonexecutive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
fo be granted under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any fime.

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

HEEBRSEENERARR B RRELRERR - ANSERE
NEBELBHRERMEBZ AR A EBKR

To encourage eligible participants fo perform their best in achieving
the goals of the Company while at the same time allow them tfo share
the fruits of the Company's business achieved through their effort and
confribution.

ARAFEEAMBRARIZITBALS EEREF(RRNTEEK
FRITESE) -

Executives or employees or directors (including both executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

37,196,590 Ik & @Ak I B B TARAZ 4.3% °
37,196,590 ordinary shares and 4.3% of the issued share capital.

MERENEM 1 2 PRRARFSBEITREZ 1%
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

MEFETRASGRARA - EREAER T NERR LB E
ERERTFER EXERRAE I ZEPIRE

Defermined and nofified by the directors to each grantee, but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of options
subject fo the provisions for early termination thereof.
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35. BRRESTEI(E) 35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
PITRERILARA MERETNENEBROmMD -
B 2 SRR To be determined by the directors and included in the relevant offer
Minimum period for which letrers.

an option must be held
before it can be exercised

DA AN FE T R0R &
Amount payable on acceptance Nil.
BEITRECEE RERET  BUARUTZRSE (IR ZEHE : (| NEHFER
Basis for determining the HEBAREER B (BERSRR) » AN B & ARE @A h
exercise price B Rl BEFXEERERSMAIELER RN AR
KR FIRHIE -

Defermined by the directors but must be the highest of (i the nominal
value of shares; (ii] the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of
the share options, which must be a business day; and |iii) the average
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.

FHEIZ R T FrEERAN BER T —_F/\HZ++tH-
The remaining life of the Scheme The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.
BERRE D 4B B 45 A A MCERAR B S A Y Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or fo vote
RAELRBZHERN o at shareholders’ meetings.
FRREFTEIMARITE 2 BRENT The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during
the year:
—Z2-CF - F
2012 2011
Y INFEF 15
TEE B 17Ef8 BB
Weighted 28 Weighted A
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
=749 F 5714 T
B ‘000 BT ‘000
HK$ HK$
per share per share
E3) At beginning of year 1.10 4,550 0.82 26,350
FAKRMH Granted during the year — — 1.46 3,000
FRITE Exercised during the year 0.82 (2,550) 0.85 (24,800)
FR At end of year 1.46 2,000 1.10 4,550
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RBERK - HARTTEBREZITEE
RATiEERT -

—E-—fF —T——F
BREHE BIREHE
2012 2011
Number of Number of
options opfions

F F

‘000 ‘000

— 450

— 450

— 450

— 1,200

1,000 1,000
1,000 1,000
2,000 4,550

Y BRREZITEEAR AR A RET
AR RIBATEABULE ML

B
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as af that end of the reporting period are as follows:

TEE TR

Exercise price* Exercise periods
ZRET
HK$ per share

0.82 “TELFNA=TRE

—Z——F\AZt=H

30-8-2007 to 23-82011

082 ZTZ)/\F/\A-tWAZ

—E——F\AZt=H

24-82008 to 23-82011

082 ZEFAF/N\A-tWAZE

—F——%\AZ+=H

2482009 to 23-82011

0.82 —T-TF\AZTHEEZE

“E—%NAZ+=H
24-8-2010 10 23-8-2011

1.46 “E——FNAt+tEZE
“E-ZFNAATRA
1792011 to 169-2012
1.46 —E-—FAATERE
“E-=FNA+AH

17:9-2012 10 16:9-2013

1.46

The exercise price of the share opfions is subject fo adjusiment in case of
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capifal.
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35. BRRESTEI(E)

REBEE_ZTN\F=A=+—HILFE

Rz BREZ A FER15798,000

BIT(B7H0268TE0.60ET) &
PAREEHEE-T——F=ZA=1—H
It FEERRERERS 570,000/

JT °©
BE_ZT——F=A=1+—HIFEK
iz BikE 2 A FER,177,0008 7T
(8 03BTLE046ET)  HRAK
SECENFARERBARMER X 424,000
BIL(ZF——% : 647,00087T) °

BE_T——5=-A=1t—HILFER
HZ AR BRE . A FEIRE G
A e A BB AT EEt R
FEIHE Z R R AGAE » TRIIEAAER

RA

BAZTRHAZE

R

RS (%)

FRERRE (%)

3B M 2K (%)

B ETERHR (F)
IR E (BB TT)

F - —

— =

F A 17 £2,550,00017 (
% :24,800,00017 ) B K # F %
172,550,000 (= & — — %
24,800,0008% ) & ~ 7] & @ &
M 2550008 (= & — —
2,480,000/ 7T ) ¥ A A % 1,836,000
BIT(ZT——% :18,496,000% L)
B B (R EITRSAT) - FEBEER
PSRRI TE 36
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2008 was HK$15,798,000 (HK$0.26 to HK$0.60 each) of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$570,000
during the year ended 31 March 2011,

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2011 was HK$1,177,000 (HK$0.3 to HK$0.46 each) of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$424,000
(2011: HK$647,000) during the year.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2011 was estimated as at the date of grant, using
a binomial model, taking info account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the major
inputs fo the model used:

—TTF

NA++R

17 September

Date of grant 2010
Dividend vyield (%) 34
Expected volatility (%) 61
RiskHfree inferest rate (%) 0.654
Expected life of options (year) 3
Weighted average share price [HK$ per share| 1.43

The 2,550,000 (2011: 24,800,000] share options exercised
during the year resulted in the issue of 2,550,000 (2011
24,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital
of HK$255,000 (2011: HK$2,480,000) and share premium of
HK$1,836,000 (2011: HK$ 18,496,000 (before issue expenses), as
further detailed in note 36 1o the financial statements.



35.

36.

BRAERTEI(E)

RHBEEHR ARARENEA
2,000,000f3(=F——14 : 4,550,000
MBI RARITE - REBEARFRITHR
KR 2EITERARITE BIRER
BB B RSN 172,000,000 8(=
T——F:4,550,000/k) & @A &
SN AR /200,000 T(ZF——%F -
455,000 7T ) KB 74 (8 (FNBR #1759
X A1) A2,720,0008 L (ZF——%F:
4,556,000#7T) °

RELEZEHHHRRER - RIEETE
AR 7RHE 2,000,000 (ZF——F:
3,800,00017 ) B B4 1w R1T {8~ B A
NEEHCBEITRND02%(ZF——
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G
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 2,000,000 (2011:
4,550,000 share opfions outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 2,000,000 (2011:
4,550,000] odditional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$200,000 (2011: HK$455,000) and share
premium of HK$2,720,000 (2011: HK$4,556,000) before issue
expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
2,000,000 (2011: 3,800,000) share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.2% (2011: 0.4%) of the
Company's shares in issue as at that dafe.

RESERVES

(a)  Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial stafements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enferprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred
fo sfatutory reserves which are resfricted as fo use.

2011/2012 F #

133



134

:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W % W5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 RZZ—ZF=f=+—H
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BERRA
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k=E——%NA—-H

AEEH

{TiEiRRE
EEREXA

“E—ERERE

ZE-ZERHRE

36. RESERVES (Cont'd)

AT Apiil 2010
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Equitysetled share
opfion arrangements
Exercise of share opfions
2010 final dividend
declared and paid
2017 inferim dividend

At 31 March 2011 and
1 Apil 2011
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Equity-setled share
opfion arrangements
Exercise of share opfions
2011 finl dividend
declared and paid
2012 interim dividend

RZE-Z#=A=+—H A 31 Morch 2012

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

() Company

s
Notes

34,35

34,35

REER BRERE

Share  HARE Share  REEA
premium  Contributed option  Retained ast
account surplus reserve profits Tofal
TET TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000  HK$'000 — HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
528,111 29,950 10,950 4813 573,824
- - - 202977 202977
- - - 202977 202977
- - 1217 - 1,217
29,519 - (11,029 - 18,496
- - - (25472) (25472
- - - (17,048)  (17,048]
557,630 29,950 1,144 165270 753,994
- - - 90705 90,705
- - - 90705 90,705
- - 424 - 424
2,692 - (856) - 1,836
- - - (34,891 [34,891]
- - - (13,000 (13,090
560,322 29,950 712 207,994 798,978
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ARBFHABBIERARQBIRN
LR RER—NN—F2&
BEAMBAZHBARRN A
FEBERBARRASBETRN
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ARE A ABA BB RE L
DK °
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FE M #90,705,0007% 7T £
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B /9 i 8 4 A 94,000,000 7T
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36. RESERVES (Contd)

(6]

Company (Contd)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the
Company's shares, over the nominal value of the Company's
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, the Company may make distributions
to its members out of the contributed surplus under certain

circumstances.

The profit of HK$90,705,000 for the year ended 31 March
2012 (2011: HK$202,977,000) included dividend income
of HK$94,000,000 (2011: HK$199,800,000) received from
certain subsidiaries of the Company and write-back of impairment
of amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$175,000 (2011:
HK$7,459,000).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases cerfain of its machinery (note 14) and
its investment properties (note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from three
fo thirty six months. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants and cusfomers fo pay security deposits and provide
for periodic renfal adjustments according to the then prevailing

market conditions.
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(o) HEBHEBAE)

R|EHR - FEEREBLEEHR
PREPILZ A HIAL M
AR AT F 8 2 KRR SRR PR AR

= NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(a)  As lessor (Contd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

SREWT
58
GROUP
—E--F —T——%
2012 2011
HK$'000  HK$'000
—FR Within one year 19,036 16,275
FE_ZFERF(BIFEREME)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 455 i
19,491 17,902

(b) 1EBAEA

AEBRBEEMOLHE uﬁ
WEBRNT+=E2=1N{EA
ERETHAENR BB B
TEERETHES -

R|ERKR - REERE AR

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
twelve to thirty nine months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had fotal future

ST A AT ER 2 Ak & minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
EMAMNTERNAT falling due as follows:
&8
GROUP
—E2--F —T——F
2012 2011
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 10,940 11,231
FE_ZFRF(BIFEEEME)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 3,520 10,711
14,460 21,942

ARARHERRLBITALEROL
(% 8)
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The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement af the end
of the reporting period (2011: Nil).
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38. A#iE 38. COMMITMENTS
B E OBt 5E 37(b) st 7 45 & 49 e In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 37/(b)
O RIREEIER - AEBHE THER above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
HRHE the reporting period:
)
GROUP
—F--fF ZT——F
2012 2011
FET 8T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE e Property, plant and equipment
— BAIAY - ERIERHE — contracted, but not provided for 1,782 196,194
Construction works relafing to properties
RERTPYR I ZETR under development:
— OET4) o BAR{VERHES — contracted, but not provided for 294,112 153,763
— DEERE - BRITY — authorised, but not contracted for 300,000 -
594,112 153,763
RREER - RARIL B AAE(Z The Company had no significant commitments at the end of the
T——F &) reporting period (201 1: Nil).
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39. HARAEE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
() RIBEHR RRMBERERAE (a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
RREzRARBENT provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
&= N
GROUP COMPANY
—EF--F —T—% B2 ZT—F
2012 2017 2012 2011

FET FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

A SR Guarantees given to financial
ELATNATHEE  institufions in connection
—REEER with general credit facilities
Méa T < &R granted fo:
VNG - subsidiaries — — 1,286,376 973,304
——fE#%& AR - an associate 9,800 20,000 9,800 20,000
HEAORES Guarantees in respect of
A TAT performance bonds
R 2 1R granted fo:
plil A - subsidiaries 251,598 175691 251,598 175,691
——MHHE A" - an associate 42,341 18,305 42,341 18,305

303,739 213,996 1,590,115 1,187,300
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

(bl

On 16 June 2008, the Group lodged a petition to the Shanghai
First Intermediate People’s Court (the “Shanghai Court") fo rescind
a service contract signed with a third party for a service fee of
up fo a maximum amount of RMB5,180,000 (approximately
HK$6,151,000) as a result of a dispute in the contract terms
between the Group and the third party (the “Shanghai Action”).
On 21 September 2011
and the case was closed thereafter.

, the parties agreed fo sefile the dispute

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)

(b)

Short term employee benefits
Equity-setiled share option expense
Postemployment benefits

management personnel

Outstanding balance with related parties

Defails of the Group's balances with its associates as af the end
of the reporting period are included in note 19 to the financial
statements. Guarantees given by the Group to financial institutions
in connection with general credit facilities granted fo its associates
at the end of the reporting period are included in note 39(a) fo
the financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group

Total compensation paid fo key

£E

GROUP
—E-—F —ZT——F
2012 2011
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
50,928 48,670
424 1,184
144 150
51,496 50,004

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.
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40.

BEEALRS(E)

(c)

(d

[e)

BE-ZT—-—F=A=+—H1t
FE - AEBEREE BER
ARFEHRRARETIRL
THIR 5 (FIEE19) -

(1) REBEIREARFZM
BARRATIR(FE)ER
RAl([RAIR(EE) D
HRETREEMIES

K48 FEL 66,400,000 7T
(ZF——%:6,200,000
BT

2) RAREIRLFAESHCD
AAKENEREDHIR
842,000/ 7Tk 720,00078
TL(Z T —— 4 : 842,000
AR 360,00087T) °

AL EEERZNRIREAE D

ORI LAERD °

HE2-_T——#=ZA=+—HI
FE AXERNEFEZEEERAE
REE 2O RREKE HEE R
B —BYECCE——F -
ZIEWE) - (B B 340,000%
TT(ZZ——% 1 34,359,000%
TC) © METIRE TR A £R
EZBRHE o

BE_T——%=A=1t—HIt
FE - FEEHHEECN LB
—ERRENENTEREERE
RAR(RARE—ZRTESE
KB FEEREBOOUMER) 2 BT
iz 1,039,000 %7 °
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

[c]

(d)

e)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group had the
following transactions with TTCL and TBC, associates of the
Group [note 19):

(1] TBC subcontracted engineering and mechanical works with
contract sum of approximately HK$66.4 million (2011:
HK$6.2 million] to Tysan Engineering (H.K.] Company
Limited ["TEHK"), a subsidiary of the Company.

(2)  TBC and TTCL paid management fees of HK$842,000
and HK$720,000 (2011: HK$842,000 and
HK$360,000) to the Group, respectively.

These transactions were entered into by the Group and its
associates in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group sold a
property [2011: properties) held for sale fo its key management
personnel and their close family members for a consideration of
HK$340,000 (201 1: HK$34,359,000). The property was sold
at a price mutually agreed by both parties.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group paid rental
expenses of HK$1,039,000 fo Land Smart Development Limited,
a company owned as fo 50% by Mr. David Chien, an executive
director of the Company, in respect of a lease for an office
property in Shanghai.
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41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)  Disposal of subsidiaries

In last year, on 12 June 2010, TDC, Stonehill and TAIC entered
info a disposal agreement fo dispose of all of their equity inferest
in and the rights and benéfits in the shareholder's loan to Consco,
a then non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and its
subsidiary, TIBC, fo an independent third party. The consideration
for the disposal was approximately HK$885 million, of which a
total of HK$609 million was received by TDC and Stonehill. The
disposal was completed on 29 October 2010.

The principal business of Consco and its subsidiary was property
invesiment. An announcement and a circular were made on 22
June 2010 and 28 July 2010, respectively, on the Disposal.
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4. HEMBAR(E) 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(o) HEKEBLE(E) (a)  Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd)
TET
HK$'000
BEHENEEFE Net assets disposed of:
ER S Property, plant and equipment 6,437
KREWEMIEE15) Invesiment properties (nofe 15) 889,200
FE Inventories 833
Z FREUERR Trade receivables 1759
Hip UK - AR R RIES Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 007
T EER Time deposits 48,168
Re MRITES Cash and bank balances 21,286
HAh e 308 R B iR e Other payables and deposits received (28,317)
FENTR Tax payable (749)
EIERIE A & (T 33) Deferred tax liabilities {note 33) (209,753)
AEERMMWER loans from the Group (157,098)
RS AR IRV B Loan from @ non-controlling shareholder (71,409)
IR AR AR B M S Non-controlling inferests (163,5206]
337,738
B B SNE K B Release of exchange fluctuation reserve (64,531)
B DA R FER R T UCE Release of difference between consideration
IEERAR SR E and the carrying value of non-controlling
BEREEE FHERE interest acquired recognised in equity 22,019
295,226
BEZEN loan assigned 157,098
HENTE A RIPTERE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 156,469
608,793
EBNAR Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 608,793
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4. HEMBAR(E) 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(o) HEMBLA(E) (a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Contd)
FRHENBARZRE LER An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ReBEBREFED respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

TET

HK$'000

BeRE Cash consideration 608,793

BHE RS MRITES Cash and bank balances disposed of (69,454)
FHLEMBAR RS Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents

RERBREERRLFE in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 539,339

(b] HENEREREFKBHE (b)  Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of
AY-7) associates
EFE RET-TFENA -+ In last year, on 22 September 2010, the Group disposed of
H AEBEHERNREZESH al10% interest and the rights and benefits in the shareholder's
10% 2% & B AR 3 &3 200,000 loan of HK$200,000 1o TTCL for a tfotal cash consideration of
BTHENRESZ BREA HK$776,000. TTCL and its subsidiaries (the “TTCL Group”| were
77600087 - ZRE B 5 K E M principally engaged in the general trading. Immediately affer the
BRI RESHEE )T EHR disposal, the Group's interest in TTCL was reduced to 40% and
E-REH NBREER K the TTCL Group became associates of the Group.

KERNZAEEHZEDREI0S
MEABEHRERKASAEE L

BEAE o
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4. HEMBAR(E) 41. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(b) HEREREIREIFRERE (b)  Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of
NE](#&) associates [Cont'a))
TET
HK$'000
BEHENBEERE Net assets disposed of:
mE - BB KRR Property, plant and equipment 199
FE Inventories 13,828
I E SN Trade receivables 666
Hip YR - AR R RIES Other receivables, prepayments and deposits 1,808
Re MRITHEH Cash and bank balances 6,734
ZFENERRESER Trade payables and accruals (4,029)
HAh e 308 R B iR e Other payables and deposits received (409)
FER R R B A BFRIA Amounts due fo fellow subsidiaries (4,058)
e TR Tax payable (1,529
AEERENER loans from the Group (1,000
IEIERR AR IR VB Loan from non-controlling shareholders (1,000]
IR R Non-controlling inferests (5,605)
5,605
BEZEN Loan assigned 200
HEWBARMEER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (545)
5,260
ERAR Satisfied by:
R IREEE A E) Deemed acquisition of associates 4,484
BERE Cash consideration 776
5,260
BRLENBLARZRE LER An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
ReBRARDFEIN respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
TET
HK$'000
BERE Cash consideration 776
BHEZRe MRITES Cash and bank balances disposed of (6,734)
ERLEMBARIZRER Net oufflow of cash and cash equivalents
ERBLBEERHLFE in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (5,958)
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NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

Major non-cash transaction

As further explained in nofe 18, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered info a sale and purchase agreement with the Vendors
fo acquire from the Vendors 40% equity interest in and the rights and
benefits in the shareholders’ loans to the Then 60%owned Subsidiaries
for the total cash consideration of HK$300,000,000. During the year
ended 31 March 2011, consideration of HK$150,000,000 was
paid. The remaining balance of the consideration of the fransaction was
included in other payables, deposits received and receipt in advance
as at 31 March 2011 and was paid during the year.

2011/2012 F #

145



[ )
:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W% W % W5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

. BERSD cERMTA 43.

BT AZREER The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

RBEHR - B
—|t .

as atf the end of the reporting period are as follows:

146

%8 GROUP
TREE Financial assets
~E-C —F——&
2012 2011
RAYE BATE
STABEZ fTABEZ
tREE EREE
-KRE —-H{EEE
Financial Financicl
assets at fair assefs af fair
EHR value through EF R value hiough
FWEE  profitor FeMzE profit or
loansand ~loss - held @ loonsand  loss-held it
receivables  for frading Total  receivables  for frading Total
T#r T#n Tén AT TET TAT
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BERRZRH Amounts due from associates
(BHzE19) (nofe 19) 1,745 — 1,745 1,114 - 1,114
AR ARSI 19)  loans fo associates [nofe 19) 8,150 — 8,150 3,250 _ 3250
ZSEWEE Trade receivables 430,072 — 430,072 454734 — 454,734
BN FER AR Investments ct fair value through
ZE profit or loss — 3,282 3,282 - 122933 122933
LG UG Other receivables 21,452 - 21,452 31,911 - 31,911
fTHEeRIA Derivative financial instruments — 110 110 - 87 87
EAFH Time deposits 208,248 — 208,248 788,527 - 78852/
SHEES Restricted cash 79,621 — 79,621 56,286 - 56,286
BeRRTER Cash and bank belances 275816 — 275816 321484 — 321,484
1,025,104 3,392 1,028,496 1657306 123,020 1,780,326

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT
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ERERER
RAEAR
MTEERIA
MERTHEE
REBERRAZEN
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Financial liabilities

BRI R R T

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

- -TF
2012 2011

BOTE RATE

AR iTARRLZ

EREE TRAE

-RHFEE ~FHEEE

RE#  Financidl Z&%  Financidl

RS liobilties ot BASIZ  lobilties of

SREE  fairvalue SBEE  fairvle

Financial through Financial through

liabiliies ot~ profit or liabilities ot profit or
amorfised  loss - held @ omotised  loss - held t
cost ~ for trading Total cost  fortrading Total
TET FEn FEx TEL TAT TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Trade payables 249,480 — 249480 290,243 - 290,243
Other payables 4,555 — 4555 157,921 - 157921
Derivative financial instruments — 11,146 11,146 - 5,847 5,847
Inferest-bearing bank borrowings 598,278 — 598278  460,/14 - 460,714
loan from an associate 24,560 - 24,560 24,560 - 24,560
876,873 11,146 888,019 933,438 5847 939,285

2011/2012 & #
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43. BERIE T 2EMTA

AY=]

HEARL R(HIEE18)

RiTHET

(&)

RMBARZ FRAME18)

B B HRR

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

COMPANY

Financial assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 18]
Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries (note 18)
Trade payables

—EB--F —T—F
2012 2011
=£70)4 B3k

FEW SR FEWFRIE
Loans and loans and
receivables  receivables
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
— 22,312

230 11,925

230 34,237
B2 —T—%
2012 2011

HIER 2 5I8R 2
=l A=V
Financial Financial
liabilities at  liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
101,610 83,926
848 15
102,458 83,041
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£IE
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NEFixG A FERERY
E2H A\FEBEHERKE
BBEMENETENR
FE - EEHERTENER
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44.

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2012 RZZE—ZF=F=+—H

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing

the fair values of financial instruments:

level 1:

level 2:

level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or
indirectly, but where prices have nof been defermined in
an active market, financial assets with fair value based on
broker quotes, invesiments in private equity funds with fair
values obtained via fund managers and assets that are
valued using the Group's model whereby the majority of
assumptions are market observation

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for
which any inputs which have a significant effect on the
recorded fair value are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs)

2011/2012 & #
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44, NP ESEREE/E) 44. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Contd)
RoE——FR - FE——F=H=+— Assets measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2012 and 201 1:
B#AFEGFEZEE
&8 GROUP
“E-CF %
2012 2011

1B HIE $IE g% 21E  FIE  FIE 25
level T level 2 Level3 Totdl  level 1 level2  level3 Total
tEr FEr  FEr  FTEr  FEr FEr TEr TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HK$000

BATEA Investments t fair
Bz RE volue through profit or loss 3,282 - — 3282 4183 118750 - 122933
TESRTIA Derivative financial nstrumens — 110 - 110 - 87 - 87
3,282 110 — 3392 4183 11883/ - 123,020
RoE-——FER-_FE——F=H=+— Liabilities measured at fair valve as at 31 March 2012 and 2011:
AEAFETEZERE -
£E GROUP
—E-CF E—F
2012 2011
FIE $2B  HIE wr F1E F2E EIE @it
level T level2  level3 Totl  level T level2  level3 Total
7t FEr TEr TEr  TEr  FEr  TErT TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
(TESBIE Derivative financial instruments — 11,146 — 11,146 - 5847 - 5847
R-ZE——F=A=+—08 ARFF The Company did not have any financial insfruments measured at fair
EIMIRALENEY SR TAE(ZE value as at 31 March 2012 (201 1: Nil).
——F )
FRFIEBRE)BL ESR N TE During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements
HE FIERTEEASELY (- between level 1 and level 2 and no fransfers into or out of level 3

——fF &) o (207 1: Nil).
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45.

ERBMBERAR AT

W % i 7 W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2012 RZZE——F=A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, investments at fair value through
profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, frade and other payables
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial insfruments are disclosed
in the respective notes to these financial statements. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are sef out below. Management manages and monifors these
exposures fo ensure that appropriate measures are implemented in @
fimely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, and
frade and other receivables.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high creditratings assigned by infernational creditrating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily affributable to its frade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual frade debt on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo bad debis is not
significant. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with the exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure
fo credit risk arising from frade and other receivables are disclosed in
nofes 24 and 25 1o the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in inferest rates is mainly aftributable
fo its interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rafes
expose the Group to interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an interest rafe hedging policy. However, management monitors
the Group's inferest rate exposure and considers enfering info inferest
rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo inferest rate fluctuations should the
need arise.

2011/2012 & #
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45. MIKREMREEBERBER/E)

FIEE Rz (4E)

TRIIRAERA BB TE 2
RT ARE 2B EHEBY T
BIEE 2 S RAREZ R CRHY
BAZ EAYENHHELRART
RE 2 B -

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk [Conta))

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably

possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,

of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings) and the Group's equity (before any impact on tax).

£E GROUP
Flz= L5
Increase
in interest
rate
—E-CF 2012
RITER Bank loans 10052
100 basis points
FTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 100E %
100 basis points
—E——% 2011
ITES Bank loans 100 &2,
100 basis points
THEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 100 52k
100 basis points
* T BRERE SN * Excluding refained profits
SMERE Foreign exchange risk

AEEEBEREERTEAMELR
% EREDZZHNBTRARKES
- XEE KEEZRITEENE
7T BTk BTatE

BEBREERAKEMAY cE¥E

[ WKRERREE BRI LEHINE
ROl

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

BRBLATER
i/ (i)
Increase/
(decrease)

in profit
before tax
FET
HK$'000

(5,990)

2,000

(4,618)

2,000

sED
Decrease
in equity™
FET
HK$'000

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with

most of ifs fransactions sefiled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In

the current year, the Group had bank borrowings denominated in Hong

Kong dollars, Euro and Japanese Yen.

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing

basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the

need arises.
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45. BIRBREEBEEREEK/Z) 45.
POLICIES (Cont'd)
SMNE R (4B ) Foreign exchange risk (Contd)

TRIRIREERR - EREHMEHR
BRETEZERT  AEEZ A
MESREERBBEZAFELRE
FHMTRATEXHRAEA EE

B2 BRI
%M
—E-—F

BT BT
A7 BT R S

(ElEmS b B

W8T BT

—E——F

BT BT %
i 7T BT R S

Y TEREREEN

monetfary assefs and liabilities).

GROUP

2012
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against Euro
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against Euro
If Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Japanese Yen
I Hong Kong dollar strengthens
against Japanese Yen

2011
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against Euro
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens

against Euro

* Excluding refained profits

Increase in
exchange
rate

%

31 March 2012 RZZE—ZF=F=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Euro and
Japanese Yen exchange rates, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group's profit before tax (due o changes in the fair valve of

BRBLADE A
i,/ (Rs) REERIE N
Increase/  /(RA)*
(decrease)  Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax i equity*
BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(134) —
136 —
(928) —
928 —
(253) —
253 —

2011/2012 & #
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45. BREBEEEERBE/E) 45.
REE LR

AEEZ BEREBNBRITEELR
BEDEREFIM L ARFTE - K
SETHRGTEIRESHNRN - BRA
AP ERIE N LB HRIE -

RIBECATORMRER - UTEIIAL
BRARBANBERR B A ED Y

H:

568

ERERHER Trade payables

HftERFE Other payables

(TESBIA Derivative financial instruments

MEFTEE" Inferest-bearing bank
borrowings *

—FEBENRREER Loan from an associate

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial
liabilities as af the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

GROUP
“E-CF
2012
12188 AR 1E5% SENE
REREE Less than 1105 Over &t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FEL FiEx T TET T
Hk$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000

- 249,480 - - 249,480
- 4,555 - - 4,555
— 140 11,006 — 11,146

28,352 203,418 273,852 93,343 598,965
24,560 - - — 24,560

52912 457,593 284,858 93,343 888,706




45. BB REREEBERBEK/Z)

REET /A ()

SE/Z

ENE B Trade payables
EftER5E Other payables
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments
MeBEE Inferestbearing bank

borrowings *

—FBE D ARMAER

YORZE-ZFRZF-——F=AH
=t-B MERTEERERA
RERERGEE FERARGRM
AR R REER R RITEK
28,352,000 7T 5. 53,000,000/ 7T *
At - st LAB SRR E - ZFE
BENBRRERERER -

BEEHE LRRESERE - HES
PREZSRTEFRENRERER
TER12EAREHES  ARER
RESFRITERSSRBAB GAE
ZEHBEE - RELBRFEREE
BTIRE : AERERTHRRELAE
BHZMBIOR - REBE T EREE
ZER  WEBENEHRAEEBE—
MERRAER - WBRITERZ 5
FoRZE-—_F=R=+—H " I
FHIR 1218 A ARER 224,217,000
B (= — — F 1 108,247,0007%
L) R—EhF(BREEMF)E
281,405,000 L(Z & — — &
322,527,000 7T ) RREFIUE
JE 193,343,000 T(Z T ——4:
31,073,0007T) °

loan from an associate
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Contd))
GROUP (Cont'd)
“F-F
2011
12fH AR 125% SENE
REXER Less thon 105 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total
TAR TEL TEL TER TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 290,243 - - 290,243
- 157,921 - - 157,921
- 26 5,821 - 5,847
53,000 75,829 301,945 31,073 461,847
24,560 - - - 24,560
77,560 524,019 307,766 31,073 940,418

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
HK$28,352,000 and HK$53,000,000 as at 31 March 2012 and
2011, respectively, which contain a repayment on demand clause
giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
classified as on demand.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
do not believe that the bank loans will be called in ifs enfirety within
12 months, and they consider that the bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set ouf in the respective
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial statements;
the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the
maturity terms at 31 March 2012 are HK$224,217,000 (2011:
HK$108,247,000) payable less than 12 months; HK$281,405,000
(2011: HK$322,527,000) payable in one to five years, inclusive;
HK$93,343,000 (2011: HK$31,073,000] payable over five years.
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MEEZT/EE ()

all

A
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~HEAR
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Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables
Guarantees giving fo
financial insfiutions
in connecfion with
facilties granted fo:
- subsidiaries
- an associate
Guarantees in respect
of performance
bonds granted fo:
- subsidiaries
- an associate

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk/Cont @)
COMPANY
“E-CF
2012
1218 A AR 1E5% SENE
BEXEE Less than 1105 Over @t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FET TR FET FEL T
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Hk$'000 HK$'000

101,610 — - — 101,610
- 848 - - 848
1,286,376 - - — 1,286,376
9,800 - - - 9,800
251,598 - - — 251,598
42,341 — - - 42,341
1,691,725 848 - — 1692573
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REET /A ()

NE(#E)

ERHBARE

R EAER

ARFUTALEEMR
SRRERECER:

-WEBRH

——EBE R
RANTALHLED

RESEL 2R -

~HEAT

——EBER

Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables
Guarantees giving fo
financial institufions
in connection with
fociliiies gronted fo:
- subsidiaries
- an associate
Cuarantees in respect
of performance
bonds granted fo:
- subsidiaries
- an associate

EHEERTHMEEZLFE

EZRR  BAUBHRERATIENE
BEENGBEBEC REERRSEE

ZAHERE °

BRI R R T
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POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

COMPANY (Cont'd)

. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

“FF
2017
1218 AR 1555 SENE
REREE less than Tto5 Over 4=t
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total
TAL TEL T TAL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
83,926 - - - 83,926
- 15 - - 15
973,304 - - - 973,304
20,000 - - - 20,000
175,691 - - - 175,691
18,305 - - - 18,305
1,271,226 15 - - 1,271,241

Fair valves of financial assets and financial liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets

and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of

financial position approximate to their respective fair values.

2011/2012 & #
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed fo equity price
risk arising from individual equity investments classified as trading

investments (note 20) as at 31 March 2012 and 2011.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10% decrease
in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts
at the end of the reporting period.

BRELAT
REZREE B
Carrying Decrease ’mEd
amount in profit Decrease
of investments  before tax in equity*
FIET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-C-F 2012
BATEFABRZ Listed equity investments af fair value
ERRGIRE through profit or loss 3,282 328 —
—2——% 2011
WATHEFABRZ Listed equity investments af fair value
EhRHIEE through profit or loss 4,183 418 -

o TBREREEN
BEAEHE

AEEEAEEZ T BABABRASE
BARNRFELEEBZRAEER
BRREEARERUSIFAEBLHER
EARE(E -

AEBRBEERACZBHEELER
REEUIEHFE - REFIARERE
B AEEYERBINTREZR
B RERRZERNKEITHRG - 1
HE-_Z——F=ZRA=+—HKZ=Z
——FZA=+-HIEFERN EHE
AEBZEE  BEREFLEELT
&g -

2011/2012 ANNUAL REPORT

*

Excluding refained profits
Capital management

The primary obijectives of the Company's capital management are to
safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern and
fo maintain healthy capital rafios in order fo support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
fo it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31
March 2011.
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45. BIRBREEBEEREEK/Z) 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Contd)
BREE(E) Capital management [Conta))
REEHPBERBEL REREEAE The Group monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is net debt
A MERBELE T AERF R A divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
AEEGERNE - ARECHEE maintain the gearing rafio not more than 50%. Nef debt includes frade
BRERBELEERS50% - EFE payables, other payables, derivative financial instruments, interest-
BEENESER - EMEMZRE 7 bearing bank borrowings and a loan from an associate less cash
EeRTHE  HBRTEERKREHBE and cash equivalents. Capital includes total equity of the Group. The
NEHNEZRESRERRSER - & gearing rafios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
ABORENEEEER - RREHR &
AEEHERMT
—E--F —T—F
2012 2011
FET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000
eI 58T Trade payables 249,480 290,243
Hfth R~ 508 Other payables 4,555 157,921
TEemIT A Derivative financial instruments 11,146 5,847
MERITRE Inferestbearing bank borrowings 598,278 460,714
—[RIBE R AR E K loan from an associate 24,560 24,560
B BRI less: Time deposits (208,248) (/88,527
XRHRE Restricted cash (79,621) (56,286)
BeRfTaE Cash and bank balances (275,816)  (321,484)
BfE/(Re)F8E Net debt/(cash) 324,334 (227,012
i Total equily 2,035,738 1,929,415
BEREELE Gearing rafio 16% NEAN/A

2011/2012 & #
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46.

47.

RERREE

R-ZE——F+—HAZ-+tWAE &%
BR-ZBIYE=NIUNTEER
& LR MKE315000,000% T
HE—RUNEBEFBEE2RE
BRLINEE2EZEENE - =
T——5+_AtRARFEAEER
#°a]231,500,000 B TRBE_F
—ZHEZA=t-HIEFEKRR- &
HHR®E RZT-—ZFRA=1—
B ZAHETKEASERERE T
{8283,500,00078 Tr o & £ F W2 4
191,872,000 % 7T °

B ERER 2
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46.

47.

EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 24 November 2011, the Group entered into a preliminary sales
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to sell an
owner-occupied property being the whole floor of 11th Floor, Harbour
Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong to an independent
third party at a fotal cash consideration of HK$315,000,000. A
formal agreement was signed on 7 December 2011. Deposits of
HK$31,500,000 were received during the year ended 31 March
2012. Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period, on 31 May
2012, the disposal was completed and the Group received the
remaining consideration of HK$283,500,000. A gain of approximately
HK$191,872,000 was resulted.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial stafements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 28 June 2012.





